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PART I
NOTIFICATION

Item 1. Significant Parties

List the full names and business and residential addresses, as applicable, for the following persons:

(a) and (b): The Issuer's Directors andOfficers:

Name Business Address Residence Address

Robert U.Blades,Jr. Blades Holding Company, Inc. 1609 Heather Heights
Director Hornell, New York 14843 Hornell, New York 14843

Brenda L. Copeland One Steuben Square 5863 Dineen Road
President, Chief Executive Hornell, New York 14843-1699 Hornell, New York 14843
Officer and Director

Michael E.Davidson Davidson's Furniture 212 Main Street
Director 161Main Street Hornell, NY 14843

Hornell, NY 14843

Charles M.Edmondson Alfred University 71 Pine Hill Drive
Director Saxon Drive, Carnegie Hall Alfred, New York 14802

Alfred, New York 14802

Mary E.Hilfiger One Steuben Square 80 Bennett Street
Corporate Secretary Hornell, New York 14843-1699 Hornell, New York 14843

Stoner E.Horey (Not applicable) 3461 Pierce Road
Director Canisteo, New York 14823

L. Victor Myers (Not applicable) 8067 Gleason Road
Director Lima, NY 14485

James P.Nicoloff One Steuben Square 62 Maple Street
Executive Vice President, Hornell, New York 14843-1699 Hornell, New York 14843
Treasurer and
Chief Financial Officer

Charles D.Oliver Charles F.Oliver & Son 8 North Street

Director 17 South Church Street Canaseraga,New York 14822
Canaseraga, New York 14822

Amanda S.Parker Parker & Lubanski, CPAs LLP 68 Covington Street
Director 1 Lake Street, Suite 203 Perry, New York 14530

Perry, New York 14530

David A. Shults Shults & Shults 66 Maple Street
Chairman of the Board 9 Seneca Street Hornell, New York 14843
and Director Hornell, New York 14843

Eric Shults Shults & Shults 427 Seneca Road

Director 9 Seneca Street Hornell, New York 14843
Hornell, New York 14843

Sherry C.Walton (not applicable) 4165 Grandview Avenue
Director Wellsville, New York 14895

(c) The Issuer hasno general partners.

(d) The record owners of 5% or more of any class of the Issuer's equity securities:
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Name Business Address Residence Address
Steuben Trust Company, One Steuben Square (not applicable)
as Trustee for Richard W. Hornell, New York 14843-1699
Bradley QTIP Trust

David A. Shults 9 Seneca Street 66 Maple Street
Hornell, New York 14843 Hornell, New York 14843

Dick T. Hollands Not applicable 900N Taylor St.#238
McLean, Virginia 22102-3419

(e) The beneficial owners of 5% or more of any class of the Issuer's equity securities:
See responses under (d) above.

(f) Promoters of the Issuer: Not applicable.

(g) Affiliates of the Issuer: Affiliates of the issuer are its banking subsidiary, Steuben Trust Company,
and a subsidiary trust, Steuben Statutory Trust II.

(h) Counsel to the issuer with respect to the proposed offering:
Underberg & Kessler LLP, 300 Bausch & Lomb Place, Rochester, New York 14604

(i) through (m):

Eachunderwriter with respect to the proposed offering; the underwriter's directors; the underwriter's
officers; the underwriter's general partners; and counsel to the underwriter:

In each case,not applicable.

Item 2. Application of Rule 262
(a) No person identified in response to Item 1 is subject to any of the disqualification provisions

set forth in Rule 262.
(b) Not applicable.

Item 3. Affiliate Sales

Not applicable.

Item 4. Jurisdictions in Which Securities Are to be Offered

(a) None.
(b) The Common Stock to be offered by the Issuer in its Share Owner Dividend Reinvestment

and Stock Purchase Plan ("Plan") will be offered to the Issuer's existing shareholders who reside in the states
of: Arizona, Arkansas, California, Colorado, Connecticut, Florida, Georgia, Illinois, Maryland,
Massachusetts, Michigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, New Jersey, New York, North Carolina, Ohio, Oregon,
Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, and Washington. The Plan and any shares of Common Stock
purchased by the Issuer for such Plan are being offered to existing shareholders of the Issuer by delivery of
the final Offering Circular by United States mail.

Item 5. Únregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year
Not applicable.

Item 6. Other Present or Proposed Offerings
None.

Item 7. Marketing Arrangements
None; not applicable.

Item 8. Relationship With Issuer of Experts Named in Offering Statement
Not applicable.

Item 9. Use of a Solicitation of Interest Document

No; not applicable.
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PART II
OFFERING CIRCULAR
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OFFERING CIRCULAR

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION
SHARE OWNER DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

165,000shares of Common Stock
$1.00par value

TO THE COMMON SHAREHOLDERS OF STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION:

("STC" or the "Company") Share Owner Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan (the "Plan"). The
Plan offers our shareholders who own the Company's Common Stock the opportunity to automatically
reinvest any cashdividends on your Common Stock in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock.
No brokerage commissions, fees,or service charges will be paid by shareholders participating in the Plan for
purchases of shares made under the Plan.

Dividends will be reinvested on a quarterly basisas paid. The Plan may purchase shares of Common
Stock on the open market or from the Company for the accounts of participants in the Plan, as further
described herein.

Shareholders may enroll in the Plan by completing the enclosed Authorization Form and returning it
to American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, LLC, 6201 15* Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11219,the
Company's Agent for administering the Plan. Shareholders enrolled in the Plan will continue in the Plan
until they notify American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, LLC in writing that they wish to withdraw
from participation in the Plan.

If you do not wish to participate in the Plan, you do not need to take any action. You will continue
to receive your cashdividends, if and when declared, by check.

Additional information about the Plan is provided in question-and-answer form in this Prospectus.
Should any additional questions arise,please contact us.

Sincerely,

Brenda L.Copeland,
President and Chief Executive Officer

This Offering Circular relates to 165,000 shares of Common Stock, par value $1.00 per share, of the
Company registered for sale under the Plan. Please retain this Offering Circular for future referehce.

The date of commencement of this offering is
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STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

One Steuben Square
Hornell, New York 14843-1699

(607) 324-5010

165,000shares of Common Stock

All the shares of Common Stock offered hereby are being sold by Steuben Trust Corporation ("STC"
or the "Company"). There is no public market for the Common Stock and it is unlikely that a public market
will develop as a result of this Offering. The Company does not intend to list the Common Stock on any
securities exchange or the NASDAQ Stock Market. The offering price will be determined asset forth in the
Plan, a copy of which is attached hereto as Annex 1.

THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS
UPON THE MERITS OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE

TERMS OF THE OFFERING, NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER SELLING LITERATURE.
THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION; HOWEVER, THE COMMISSION HAS NOT MADE
AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREUNDER ARE
EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION.

SEE "RISK FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAGE 6 FOR INFORMATION THAT SHOULD BE
CONSIDERED BY PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS.

Underwriting
Discounts and Proceeds to the

Price to Public Commissions Company

Per Share $33.25 $ -0- $ 33.25
Total $33.25 $ -0- $33.25

The date of this Offering Circular is March 20, 2015

THE SHARESOF COMMON STOCK OFFEREDHEREUNDER ARE NOT A DEPOSIT OR AN ACCOUNT OF OUR
BANK SUBSIDIARY AND ARE NOT INSURED BY THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION OR
ANY OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCY.

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL OUR COMMON STOCK AND IS NOT SOLICITING AN
OFFERTO BUY OUR COMMON STOCK EXCEPT TO OUR EXISTING SECURITY HOLDERS.
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SUMMARY

The Plan provides all holders of the Company's Cominon Stock the ability, on a quarterly basis, to
automatically reinvest all or a portion of any cashdividends declared by the Companyor to voluntarily invest
certain additional cash payments into additional shares of Common Stock. This Offering Circular explains
the potential risks to those investing funds through the Plan and provides detailed information with respect to
the purpose, advantages,administration, participation, andcosts associated with investing through the Plan.
In addition, the Offering Circular gives detailed information with respect to making purchases under the
Plan,and how andwhen an investor may withdraw from the Plan.

Finally, the Offering Circular gives detailed information with respect to the Company, its business,
and competition. This information includes statistical, financial, and descriptive detail of the Company's
lending activities, as well as the regulation and supervision of the Company by Federal and New York State
authorities. The capitalization of the Company is also discussed,as well as its management.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

The following tables set forth our selected consolidated historical financial and other data for the years
and at the dates indicated. The information at December 31, 2014 and 2013 and for the years then
ended is derived in part from and should be read together with our consolidated financial statements
and notes thereto beginning at page F-1 of this offering circular. The selected consolidated financial
data below should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the
accompanying notes and Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations. The historical results are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for any
future period.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Condition
December 31,

2014 2013

(Dollars in Thousands)
Assets

Cash and Due From Banks . $ 10,374 13,913
Loans, net 265,857 239,513
Investment Securities 174,980 161,483
Premises & Equipment 6,914 7,181
Other Assets 16,616 16,752

Total Assets . $ 474,741 438,842

Liabilities

Deposits $ 383,364 352,952
Borrowings 38,500 38,000
Subordinated Debentures 2,062 2,062
Accrued Interest Payable 99 85
Other Liabilities 4,941 3,383

Total Liabilities $ 428,966 396,482

Shareholders' Equity
Common Stock $ 1,738 1,728
Additional Paid-In Capital 4,818 4,502
Undivided Profits 41,339 38,188
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 392 (131)

Treasury Stock (2,512) (2,234)
Total Steuben Trust Corporation 45,775 42,053
Shareholders' Equity

Non-controlling interest --- 307

Total Equity 45,775 42,360

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 474,741 438,842
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Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income

(Dollars in Thousands Except Per Share Data)

Twelve Months Ending
12/31/14 12/31/13

Interest Income $ 16,501 15,707
Interest Expense 1,066 1,027

Net Interest Income 15,435 14,680
Provision for Loan Losses 357 154

Net Interest Income After Provision

for Loan Losses 15,078 14,526
Other Operating Income 4,850 4,831
Operating Expenses 13,013 12,765

Income Before Income Tax 6,915 6,592
Income Tax 2,000 1,840

Net Income 4,915 4,752
Less: net inc.attrib. to non-controlling interest 46 28
Net income available to

Steuben Trust Corporation $ 4,724
4,869

Basic Earnings Per Share $ 2.97 2.88

Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 2.97 2.87

Year ended December 31,
Other Financial Information 20H 2013

Return on Average Assets 1.06% 1.11%

Return on Average Equity 10.80% 11.57%

Dividend Payout Ratio 35.28% 0.00%

RISK FACTORS

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD CONSIDER CAREFULLY THE FOLLOWING
FACTORS IN ADDITION TO THE OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING THE COMPANY
AlyD ITS BUSINESS CONTAINED IN THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR BEFORE PURCHASING
THE SHARES OFFERED HEREBY.

THE COMPANY MAY BE UNABLE TO PAY DIVIDENDS OR ITS ABILITY TO PAY
DIVIDENDS MAY BE RESTRICTED.

The Con1pany's ability to pay dividends to holders of its Common Stock is dependent on receipt of
cashdividends from its wholly-owned subsidiary, Steuben Trust Company (the "Bank"). Federal regulations
limit the amount of cashdividends which the Bank may pay to the Company and may restrict the amount of
dividends payable by the Company. Failure to obtain sufficient funds from the Bank to make periodic divi-

dend payments will adversely affect the Company'sability to pay dividends to the holders of the Common
Stock. The Bank's ability to make dividend payments is subject to the Bank maintaining profitable opera-

tions. There canbe no assurance that future earnings will support dividend payments to the Company.

The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Federal Reserve Board") has the power
to prohibit the payment of dividends by a bank holding company if actions by such a company constitute an
unsafe or unsound practice. The Federal Reserve Board has issued a policy statement on the payment of cash
dividends by bank holding companies,which expresses the Federal Reserve Board'sview that a bank holding
company should pay cash dividends only to the extent that the company'snet income for the past year is
sufficient to cover both the cash dividends and a rate of earnings retention that is consistent with the
company'scapital needs,asset quality, and overall financial condition. The Federal Reserve Board indicated
that it would be inappropriate for a company experiencing serious financial problems to borrow funds to pay
dividends. Federal Reserve Board policy also requires that a bank holding company serve as a source of
financial strength to its subsidiary banks by standing ready to use available resources to provide adequate
capital funds to those banksduring periods of financial stress or adversity. These policies could affect the
ability of the Company to pay cashdividends.
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Federal legislation also prohibits depository institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (the "FDIC"), such as the Bank, from paying dividends or making capital distributions that
would cause the institution to fail to meet minimum capital requirements. In addition, under the New York
Banking Law, the Bank may only pay dividends up to an amount equal to its net profits for the current year
combined with its retained net profits of the preceding two years.

NO PUBLIC MARKET FOR STOCK; COMPANY NOT REQUIRED TO FILE PERIODIC
REPORTS WITH THE SEC

There is no public market for the Company's Common Stock offered hereby and there can be no
assurance that any trading market will develop at any time in the future. Additionally, the Common Stock
offered hereby is offered pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements under the Securities
Act pursuant to SEC Regulation A. The Company is not and will not be required to file periodic reports with
the SEC as a result of this Offering or otherwise be subject to the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934,as amended (the "Exchange Act") or the rules of the SEC applicable to reporting companies. Such a
reporting obligation would not arise unless and until the Company has 2,000 shareholders of record. In order
to avoid the direct and indirect costs of being a reporting company, the Company intends to attempt to stay
below 2,000 record shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT COMPETITION FROM BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
OFFERING SIMILAR SERVICES

The Company faces significant competition from many banks, savings institutions, and other
financial institutions, which have branch offices or otherwise operate in the Company'smarket area, as well
as many other companies now offering a variety of financial services. Many of these competitors have
substantially greater financial resources than the Company, including a larger capital base that allows them to
attract customers seeking larger loans than the Bank is able to make.

LOCAL, NATIONAL, AND INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND GOVERNMENT
MONETARY AND FISCAL POLICIES MAY ADVERSELY IMPACT PROFITABILITY

Commercial banking is affected, directly and indirectly, by local, domestic and international eco-

nomic and political conditions, and by government monetary and fiscal policies. Conditions such as infla-
tion, recession,unemployment, volatile interest rates, tight money supply, real estate values, international
conflicts and other factors beyond the control of the Company and the Bank may adversely affect the poten-
tial profitability of the Companyand the Bank. The Company is not immune from the effects of the current
global economic downturn. Maintaining profitability may become increasingly challenging until these con-

ditions improve. It should be noted that the recent recovery in the stock market has improved the overall
wealth of many households. However, most of this additional wealth is in 401(k) plans or other retirement
accounts. Therefore, the spending power of these households hasnot been greatly increased. Volatility in
the stock market remains a risk to household wealth levels as well as consumer confidence. However, the
Company is sensitive to regional factors due to its geographic concentration.

FEDERAL AND STATE REGULATIONS COULD AFFECT THE COMPANY AND TI(E BANK
BY INCREASING COSTS OF OPERATIONS

The operations of the Company and the Bank are heavily regulated and will be affected by present
and future legislation and by the policies established from time to time by various federal and state regulatory
authorities. In particular, the monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Board have hada significant effect on
the operating results of banks in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future. In addition, the
Company is regulated by the Federal Reserve Board under the federal Bank Holding Company Act of 1956
as amended,and the Bank is regulated both by the New York State Department of Financial Services andby
the FDIC. Changes in applicable laws and regulations resulting from the current turmoil in the financial
markets are anticipated. These may result in increased cost of operations for the Company. Increased
regulation is highly likely and as a result the Bank's operations may be affected, and its costs of compliance
may rise.
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The Dodd-Frank Act, enacted in July 2010, represents a comprehensive overhaul of the US financial services
industry and requires federal agencies to implement new rules. These new rules will include, among other
things, changes to consumer and mortgage origination requirements.

In July 2013, the Federal Reserve and the Bank's primary federal regulator, the FDIC and other
regulatory agencies published final rules (the Basel III Capital Rules) that will revise their leverage and risk-
based capital requirements and the method for calculating risk-weighted assets to make them consistent with
agreements that were reached by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision and certain provisions of the
Dodd-Frank Act. Among other things, the rule establishes a new common equity Tier 1 minimum capital
requirement (4.5% of risk-weighted assets), increases the minimum Tier 1 capital to risk-based assets
requirement (from 4% to 6% of risk-weighted assets) and assigns a higher risk weight (150%) to exposures
that are more than 90 days past due or are on nonaccrual status and to certain commercial real estate facilities
that finance the acquisition, development or construction of real property. The fmal rule also requires
unrealized gains and losses on certain available -for-sale securities holdings to be included for purposes of
calculating regulatory capital requirements unless a one-time opt-in or opt-out is exercised. The rule limits a
banking organization's capital distributions and certain discretionary bonus payments if the banking
organization does not hold a "capital conservation buffer" consisting of 2.5% of common equity Tier 1
capital risk-based weighted assets in addition to the amount necessary to meeting its minimum risk-based
capital requirements.

The final rule became effective for the Bank on January 1, 2015. The capital conservation buffer
requirement will be phased in beginning January 1,2016 and ending January 1,2019, when the full capital
conservation buffer requirement will be effective. The final rule also implements consolidated capital
requirements, effective January 1,2015.

OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY AND THE BANK DEPEND IN LARGE PART ON EXISTING
MANAGEMENT

The operations of the Company and the Bank to date have been largely dependent on existing
management. The loss to the Company or the Bank of one or more of its existing executive officers could
have a material adverse effect on the Company'sbusiness and results of operations.

GEOGRAPHIC CONCENTRATION OF LOAN PORTFOLIO

The bank's primary lending markets are the New York counties of Steuben, Allegany, Livingston,
Wyoming and Monroe. Therefore, despite the bank's diversification efforts, we are still reliant on the
economy in this region as well asat risk to any natural disasters in the area.

MANAGEMENT, THROUGH A LARGE PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP, COULD CONTROL
CERTAIN SHAREHOLDER VOTES

As of December 31, 2014,Directors and officers of the Company and their affiliates owned, or had
power to vote approximately 24.9%of the Company'soutstanding shares of Common Stock. Thip includes
stock options that are either vested, or will be vested within 60 daysof December 31, 2014. Management,by
virtue of this concentration of stock ownership, may be able to control the election of the Company's
Directors and to control the outcome of actions requiring shareholder approval.

CERTAIN PROVISIONS MAY DETER OR DISCOURAGE A CHANGE IN THE CONTROL OF
THE COMPANY

The Company's Certificate of Incorporation, Bylaws and the New York Business Corporation Law
contain certain provisions which may have the effect of deterring or discouraging,among other things, a non-

negotiated tender or exchange offer for shares of Common Stock, a proxy contest for control of the
Company, the assumption of control of the Company by a holder of a large block of Common Stock or
removal of the Company's management.
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TEN LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS MAY BE LIABLE FOR UNPAID WAGES AND SALARIES

New York Business Corporation Law Section 630 holds the ten largest shareholders of a New York
corporation liable for any wages or salaries that an employee or laborer is unable to collect from the
Company. Under Section 630, each of the ten largest shareholders of the Company could be personally
liable for any wages or salaries earned for services provided to the Company for which the Company fails to
make payment.

OUR ALLOWANCE FOR POSSIBLE LOAN LOSSES MAY BE INSUFFICIENT

We maintain an allowance for loan losses,which is a reserve established through a provision for loan
losses charged to expense. This reserve represents our best estimate of probable incurred losses within the
existing portfolio of loans. The allowance, in our judgmerit, is necessary to reserve for probable losses and
risks incurred in the loan portfolio. The level of the allowance reflects our ongoing evaluation of various
factors, including growth of the portfolio, an analysis of individual credits, adverse situations that could
affect a borrower's ability to repay, prior and current loss experience, the results of regulatory examinations,
and current economic conditions. The determination of the appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses
inherently involves a high degree of subjectivity and requires us to make significant estimates of current
credit risks and future trends, all of which may undergo material changes. Changes in economic conditions
affecting borrowers,new information regarding existing loans, identification of additional problem loans and
other factors both within and outside our control, including the possible collapse or insolvency of major area
employers as a result of the current recession, may require an increase in the allowance for loan losses. In
addition, bank regulators periodically review our allowance for loan losses and may require an increase in the
provision for loan losses or the recognition of further loan charge-offs, based on judgments different than
those of management. In addition, if charge-offs in future periods exceed the allowance for loan losses,we
will need additional provisions to increase the allowance for loan losses. Any increases in the allowance for
loan losses will result in a decrease in net income and possibly capital, and may have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

OUR INFORMATION SYSTEMS MAY EXPERIENCE AN INTERRUPTION OR BREACH IN
SECURITY

We rely heavily on communications and information systems to conduct our business. Any failure,
interruption or breach in security of these systems could result in failures or disruptions in our general ledger,
deposit, loan and other systems, including risks to data integrity. While we have policies and procedures
designed to prevent or limit the effect of the failure, interruption or security breach of our information
systems, there can be no assurance that any such failures, interruptions or security breaches will not occur or,
if they do occur, that they will be adequately addressed. The occurrence of any failures, interruptions or
security breaches of our information systems could damage our reputation, result in a loss of customer
business, subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny, or expose us to civil litigation and possible financial
liability, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

The Bank has a comprehensive Business Resumption Contingency Plan that sets forth plans and
procedures for various types of identified risks including but not limited to fire, flooding, environmental
disasters and technical causes. The plan is updated periodically and approved by the Board of Directors on
an annual basis. A key component of the plan includes backup and recovery procedures for our core
operating system. The Bank has a contract with a third party (Sungard) for this service, which includes the
use of a test site in the event of an emergency. Employees of the Bank perform a restoration of the core
system on anannualbasis at the test site.

OUR RESULTS MAY BE AFFECTED BY THE SOUNDNESS OF OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS

We engage in trading, clearing, counterparty, and other types of transactions with other financial
services institutions. We regularly review our exposure to these other institutions. However, a default by one
or more of these institutions could adversely affect our results from operations and financial condition.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

SHARE OWNER DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The provisions of the Plan are discussed in question-and-answer form below. Holders of shares of
the Company's Common Stock that do not wish to participate in the Plan will continue to receive cash
dividends, if and when declared,by check as in the past. Shareholders that wish to participate in the Plan
will need to complete andsubmit an Authorization Form as discussed below. The Plan, a copy of which is
attached as Annex 1 to this Offering Circular, is incorporated herein by reference. All recipients of this
Offering Circular are urged to read the Plan in its entirety.

The Plan provides holders of the Company's Common Stock with a simple andconvenient method
of purchasing additional shares of Common Stock without fees of any kind. Any holder of record of shares
of Common Stock is eligible to join the Plan.

Participants in the Plan may:

1. Reinvest dividends on all shares held by a participant.

2. Reinvest dividends on less than all of the shares (minimum of 10% of share balance) held by
a participant and continue to receive cash dividends on the other shares.

3. Invest by making voluntary additional cash payments at any time in an amount not less than
$100.00,but up to $5,000.00 per quarter, whether or not dividends are being reinvested, and provided the
Plan participant does not reside in the state of Pennsylvania.

Cash payments will be invested on the dividend payment date of each quarter after they are received.
Shares purchased will also be entitled to subsequent dividends.

Purpose -

(1) What is the purpose ofthe Plan?

The purpose of the Plan is to provide holders of record of the Company's Common Stock with a
simple, convenient and inexpensive method of investing cash dividends and additional voluntary cash
payments in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock without payment of any brokerage
commissions or service charges.

Advantages

(2) What are the advantages of the Plan?

Plan participants may purchase additional shares of Common Stock quarterly with reinvested cash
dividends on all or less than all of the shares (minimum of 10%of share balance) of the Company'sCommon
Stock, which they own. Except for Plan participants residing in Pennsylvania, participants also may elect to
purchase additional shares of Common Stock quarterly with voluntary additional cash payments of a
minimum of $100.00 per quarter, up to a maximum of $5,000.00 per quarter. No commissions or service
charges are paid by participants in connection with purchases under the Plan. Full investment of funds is
possible under the Plan because the Plan permits fractions of shares, as well as full shares, to be credited to a
participant's account. In addition, dividends in respect of such fractions, as well as full shares, will be
credited to a participant's account. Dividends on the shares in the participant's account are automatically
reinvested in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock. Participants are assured of safekeeping of
shares credited to their accountsunder the Plan. Regular statements of account provide simplified record
keeping. The participant's equity in the Company will increase with each dividend payment thereby
generating additional dividend income to be invested.
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Administration

(3) Who administers the Plan for participants?

American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, LLC (the "Agent"), 6201 15* Avenue, Brooklyn,
New York, will administer the Plan for participants, including all record keeping, sending statements of
account to participants and performing other duties relating to the Plan. Shares of Common Stock purchased
under the Plan will be held by and registered in the name of the Agent or its nominee as agent for the
participants in the Plan.

Participation

(4) How does a shareholder participate?

A holder of record of shares of Common Stock may join the Plan by signing the Authorization Form,
a copy of which is enclosed with this Offering Circular as Annex 2, and returning it to American Stock
Transfer and Trust Company,LLC, 6201 15*Avenue, Brooklyn, New York 11219. An Authorization Form
and return envelope may be obtained at any time by calling 1-800-937-5449. Written requests for
Authorization Forms and return envelopes should be mailed to the Agent. All holders of record of shares of
Common Stock are eligible to participate in the Plan. If a shareholder's shares are held in the name of a
broker or nominee, the ownership of the number of shares that the shareholder wishes to have participate in
the Plan must first be transferred into the shareholder's name in order to participate in the Plan. (To affect
such a transfer, a shareholder should contact his/her/its broker or nominee.)

(5) When may a shareholder join the Plan?

A holder of record of shares of Common Stock may join the Plan at any time. An optional cash
payment may be made at any time, including when joining the Plan,by enclosing a check or money order
with an Authorization Form.

The Authorization Form must be received by the Agent no later than five business days prior to a
record date for a dividend in order to reinvest that dividend through the Plan. With respect to any
Authorization Form received after such date, the reinvestment of dividends through the Plan will begin with
the next succeeding dividend.

(6) What does the Authorization Form provide?

The Authorization Form provides for the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock through
the following investment options:

1. Reinvest dividends paid on all shares held by a participant.

2. Reinvest dividends paid on less than all of the shares held by a participant and continue to
receive cashdividends on the other shares.

3. . Invest by making voluntary additional cash payments at any time of not less than $100.00
per quarter and not exceeding $5,000.00per quarter, whether or not dividends are being reinvested.

Cash dividends on shares credited to a participant's account under the Plan are automatically
reinvested in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock.

(7) How may a participant change options under the Plan?

A participant may change his/her/its investment option at any time by signing a new Authorization
Form and returning it to the Agent. Any change in option with respect to reinvestment of dividends must be
received by the Agent at least five business days prior to the record date for the next succeeding dividend to
allow sufficient time for processing. A participant also must submit an appropriately completed form at any
time that a participant desires to make additional voluntary purchases of shares of Common Stock under the
Plan.
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Costs

(8) Are there any expenses to participants in connection with purchases under the Plan?

No. All brokerage commissions or service charges will be paid by the Companyfor open market or
negotiated purchases of shares.No brokerage fees or service charges will be charged for purchases of shares
under the Plandirectly from the Company. All costs of administration of the Planare paid by the Company.

Purchases

(9) What will be the price ofshares of Common Stock purchased under the Plan?

If original issue or treasury shares are purchased under the Plan directly from the Company, the per
share price of the shares so purchased will be the then-current price per share of the Company's Common
Stock, as determined by a committee appointed by the Company's Board of Directors or the Board of
Directors itself (the "Committee"). This Committee determines what, in its best judgment, the Committee
believes to be the fair market value of a share of the Company's Common Stock from time to time. The
Committee may determine such fair market value from any reasonable criteria it elects to use,such as recent
sales of shares of Common Stock in the marketplace of which it is aware, the fair market value and recent
sales of shares of comparable institutions, other measures such as return on equity, return on assets and book
value, and any other reasonable criteria the Committee determines. Only the shares that may be sold by the
Company to the Plan are the subject of this Offering Circular, and the Company will only receive the
proceeds from the sales of any such shares.

If shares are purchased under the Plan in the market, such purchases will be made at prevailing
market prices and the price to each participant's Plan account will be based on the average price of all shares
so purchased. The Company will not receive the proceeds from any such purchases.

If shares are purchased under the Plan in privately negotiated transactions, such purchases will be
made at prices not exceeding the then-fair market value of the Company's Common Stock as determined by
the Committee, and the price to each participant's account will be based on the average price of all shares so
purchased.

As of the date of this Offering Circular, the current fair market value of the Company's Common
stock is $33.25per share,asdetermined by the Committee. From time to time the Committee may determine
a new fair market value for the Company's Common Stock. Plan participants will be so notified by a
supplement to this Offering Circular.

00) How many shares of Common Stock will bepurchased for participants?

The number of shares to be purchased for a participant depends on the amount of a participant's
dividends and the prevailing market price or fair market value, as applicable, of the Common Stock on the
relevant purchase date. As soon as possible following each dividend payment date, each participant's Plan
account will be credited with that number of shares,including fractional shares computed to three decimal
places,equal to the amounts to be invested for a participant divided by the applicable purchase price.

G1) When will purchases of shares under the Plan be made?

On each dividend payment date, the cash dividends payable on all shares held in a participant's Plan
account, together with any voluntary additional cash payments that have been received from a participant at
least five business days prior to the record date for such dividend, will be applied by the Agent to the
purchase of additional shares of Common Stock. Cash dividends on all shares of Common Stock purchased
for each participant's Plan account will automatically be reinvested in additional shares of Common Stock.

Q2) How will shares bepurchased?

The Agent will use funds from cashdividends and voluntary additional cashpayments to acquire
shares of Common Stock under the Plan in any of four ways, as directed by the Company: (1) purchase
newly issued shares directly from the Company; (2) purchase Treasury shares directly from the Company;
(3) purchase outstanding shares in the market; (4) purchase shares in negotiated transactions. The Agent may
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also use any combination of these methods,as directed by the Company. If the Company sells newly issued
and/or Treasury shares under the Plan, participants will become owners of such shares as of the dividend
payment date. To the extent shares are purchased in the open market and/or in negotiated transactions, such
shares will usually be purchased within ten businessdaysfollowing a dividend payment date,subject to the
availability of shares in the market and to any regulatory restrictions on such purchases to which the
Company may be subject. Plan participants will become owners of shares purchased for their accounts upon
settlement of open market or privately negotiated purchases.

The Company will make every effort to reinvest all dividends promptly after receipt. No interest
will be paid on dividends or on voluntary additional cashpayments pending investment of such funds. To
the extent that any dividends and/or any voluntary additional cash payments cannot be reinvested in shares of
Common Stock within 45 days following a dividend payment date, then the Company reserves the right to
distribute the uninvested dividends to the participants and to return any voluntary additional cashpayments
received.

Voluntary Additional Cash Payments

Q3) How are voluntary additional cash payments made?

Except for Plan participants residing in Pennsylvania (see Page 39 of the Offering Circular),
voluntary additional cash payments may be made at any time and the amount each time may be varied. A
voluntary additional cash payment may be made when enrolling by enclosing a check or money order with
an Authorization Form. Payments may not be less than $100.00 per quarter and cannot exceed $5,000.00per
quarter. The Agent will send a receipt for each voluntary additional cash payment together with a statement
for use in making the next such payment. Note that purchases of shares with voluntary additional cash
payments will only be made quarterly as well, and that no interest will be paid on such voluntary cash
payments received pending the investment of such funds. Accordingly, it is suggested that shareholders
desiring to make voluntary additional cashpurchases of shares under the Plan submit such payments together
with an appropriately completed form to the Agent toward the end of a quarter.

Withdrawal From Participation

Q4) How does aparticipant withdraw from the Plan?

In order to withdraw from the Plan,a participant must send a written request to the Agent. When a
participant withdraws from the Plan,certificates for whole shares credited to the participant's account under
the Plan will be issued and a cash payment will be made for any fraction of a share,based upon the most
recent average per share purchase price of Common Stock made under the Plan prior to the effective date of
the withdrawal multiplied by the fractional interest.

G5) When may a participant withdraw from the Plan?

A participant may withdraw from the Plan at any time. To beeffective for a given dividend payment
date, the withdrawal notice must be received by the Agent at least five business days prior to the record date
for that dividend. Any notice of withdrawal received less than five business days prior to a dividen<Jrecord
date will not be effective until dividends paid for that record date have been reinvested and the shares
credited to the participant's Plan account.

Q6) Can aparticipant re-enter the Plan after withdrawing?

Yes, by following the procedure for initial enrollment (see Question 4).

Other Information

G7) Will certificates automatically be issued for shares of Common Stock purchased under the Plan?

No. Unless requested by a participant, certificates for shares of Common Stock purchased under the
Plan will not be issued. All shares purchased will be held by the Agent asnominee of and for the benefit of
Plan participants. The number of shares purchased for each participant's Plan account will be shown on a
statement of account that each participant will receive at least quarterly from the Agent. (This feature also
protects against loss,theft or destruction of stock certificates.)
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Certificates for any number of full shares credited to a participant's Plan account will be issued
without charge upon written request. Such shares remain eligible to participate in the Plan, and if a
participant remains in the Plan, any remaining full shares and fractional interests in the participant's Plan
account will continue to participate in the Plan aswell.

The noncertificated shares credited to a participant's Plan account cannot be pledged as collateral for
a loan or other obligation of a participant. A participant that wishes to pledge such shares must request that
certificates for such shares be issued in his/her/its name. Certificates representing fractional interests will not
be issued under any circumstances.

(18) What happens when a participant who is reinvesting the cash dividends on shares registered in the
participant's name sells or transfers a portion ofsuch shares?

If a participant who is reinvesting the cash dividends on shares of Common Stock registered in
his/her/its name disposes of a portion of such shares with respect to which he/she/it is participating in the
Plan, the Agent will continue to reinvest the dividends on the remainder of such shares that are participating
in the Plan.

(19) What happens when a participant sells or transfers all of the shares registered in the participant's
name?

If a participant disposes of all shares of Common Stock registered in his/her/its name, the Agent will
continue to reinvest the dividends on any remaining shares credited to the participant's Plan account unless
the participant also withdraws those shares held in his/her/its Plan account as well.

(20) How may a participant transfer shares held in the participant's Plan account?

A Plan participant that wishes to transfer shares held in his/her/its Plan account must first withdraw
those shares from the Plan. Upon the receipt of the certificate(s) representing such shares, the participant
may then transfer those shares .as the participant would any other securities including without limitation,
compliance with applicable federal andstate laws.

(21) Ifthe Company has a rights offering, how will aparticipant's entitlement be computed?

A participant's entitlement in a rights offering will be based on the participant's total holdings - just
as the participant's dividend is computed each quarter. Rights certificates will be issued for the number of
whole shares only, however, and rights based on a fraction of a share held in a participant's Plan account will
be sold for the participant's account and the net proceeds.will be treated asan optional cash payment.

(22) What happens if the Company issues a stock dividend or declares a stock split?

Any shares of Common Stock distributed as a result of a stock dividend or stock split by the
Company on shares credited to the account of a participant under the Plan will be added to the participant's
Plan account. Stock dividends or split shares distributed on shares registered in the name of the participant
will be mailed directly to the shareholder in the same manner as to shareholders who are not participating in
the Plan.

(23) How will a participant's Plan shares be voted at meetings of shareholders?

All shares of Common Stock credited to a participant's Plan account will be voted as the participant
directs. If on the record date for a meeting of shareholders there are shares credited to a participant's Plan
account, the participant will be sent the proxy material for that meeting. If the participant returns an
executed proxy card in a timely fashion, it will be voted in accordance with the instructions so received with
respect to all shares credited to the participant's Plan account. All suchshares may also be voted in person at
any meeting of shareholders. If the participant does not execute and return a proxy card in a timely fashion
anddoes not attend the meeting andvote such shares in person, suchshares will not be voted at that meeting.
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(24) WIzatare thefederal income tax consequences ofparticipation in the Plan?

The Company has not received a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service concerning the federal
income tax consequences of participating in the Plan. Participants are urged to consult their own tax advisers
before joining the plan. However, a general discussion of certain tax consequences follows:

(a) A participant in the Plan will be treated for federal income tax purposes as having received,
on the dividend payment date, a dividend in an amount equal to the fair market value on the dividend
payment date of the shares of Common Stock credited to the participant's Plan account. To the extent that
dividends paid by the Company to its shareholders are treated as made from the Company's earnings and
profits, those dividends are taxed in accordance with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code for federal
income tax purposes. The Company hassufficient earnings and profits such that participants can expect that
the full amount of any dividends paid will be currently taxable to Plan participants.

(b) The tax basisof shares purchased with reinvested dividends will equal the average price at
which all shares were acquired with respect to a specific dividend payment. Likewise, for each quarterly
purchase of shares made with voluntary additional cash payments, the tax basis of such shares will equal the
average price at which all such shareswere acquired.

(c) A participant's holding period for shares acquired pursuant to the Plan both with reinvested
dividends and voluntary additional cash payments will begin on the day following the purchase of such
shares.

(d) A participant will not realize any taxable income when the participant receives certificates
for whole shares credited to the participant's account, either upon the participant's request for certain of those
shares or upon withdrawal from or termination of the Plan.

(e) A participant will realize long term or short-term gain or loss when shares are sold or
exchanged,depending upon whether the shares have been held for more than one year at the time of
disposition. In the caseof a fractional share,when the participant receives a cash adjustment for a fraction of
a share credited to the participant'saccount upon withdrawal from or termination of the Plan, the amount of
such gain or loss will be the difference between the amount which the participant receives for the shares or
fraction of a share and the tax basis therefor.

(25) What are the responsibilities of the Company and the Agent under the Plan?

The Agent receives the participant's dividend payments and voluntary additional cashpayments, if
any, invests such amounts in additional shares of the Company's Common Stock, maintains continuing
records of each participant's account, and advises participants as to all transactions in and the status of their
accounts. The Agent acts as agent for the participants.

As soon as practical after each purchase for the account of a Plan participant, each participant will
receive a statement of account from the Agent showing: the total number of shares held in the participant's
Plan account; the amount of dividends received on the shares held in the participant's Plan account; the
amount invested on the participant's behalf, including any voluntary additional cash payments received; the
number of shares purchased; the price per share; and the acquisition date of such shares. Additionally, each
participant will continue to receive copies of the Company's annual and other periodic reports to
shareholders, proxy statements, and information for income tax reporting purposes.

The Company reserves the right to interpret and regulate the Plan as necessary or desirable in
connection with the administration of the Plan. In administering the Plan, neither the Company nor the
Agent will be liable for any act done in good faith or for any good faith omission to act, including, without
limitation, any claim of liability arising out of failure to terminate a participant's account upon such
participant's death prior to receipt of notice in writing of such death, nor shall they have any duties,
responsibilities or liabilities except as expressly set forth in the Plan.

Participants must recognize that neither the Company nor the Agent can provide any assurance that
shares of Common Stock purchased under the Plan will, at any particular time, be worth more or less than
their purchase price.
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(26) May the Plan be changed or discontinued?

While the Company currently expects to continue the Plan indefinitely, it reserves the right to
suspend, modify, or terminate the Plan at any time. All participants will receive notice of any such
suspension, modification, or termination..All notices from the Agent or the Company to a participant will be
addressed to the participant's last address of record with the Agent. The mailing of a notice to a participant's
last address of record will satisfy the Plan requirement of giving notice to such participant. Therefore,
participants must promptly notify the Agent in writing of any change of address.

(27) .To whom do Iwrite for additional information concerning the Plan?

The Plan is administered by the Agent, and all correspondence should be directed to:

American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, LLC
Attention: Dividend Reinvestment Department

6201 15*Avenue

Brooklyn, New York 11219
1-800-937-5449
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INFORMATION REGARDING THE COMPANY

GENERAL

The Company is a bank holding company incorporated under the New York Business Corporation
Law on February 5, 1990 and headquartered in Hornell, New York. It is the sole shareholder of Steuben
Trust Company (the "Bank"), a New York chartered commercial bank that commenced operations in 1902.
The Bank's deposits are insured by the FDIC. The Bank is not a member of the Federal Reserve System.

The Company also has a subsidiary trust, Steuben Statutory Trust II (see Subordinated Debentures
on page 25). The Company is exploring opportunities in other financial services.

The Bank is a locally managed and community oriented commercial bank which provides loans, both
residential and commercial, and other traditional financial services to customers consisting principally of
individuals and small to medium-sized businesses. The Bank attracts deposits from the general public,
business and government entities through its offices and uses these funds and other available sources of
funds to originate loans. The Bank seeks to provide personal attention and professional financial assistance
to customers. The Bank's philosophy includes providing friendly, informed andcourteous service, local and
timely decision making, flexible and reasonable operating procedures, and consistently applied credit
policies.

The Bank's market primary market area is located in Western New York State - Steuben County (4
branches),Allegany County (7 branches), Livingston County (1 branch), Monroe County (1 branch), and
Wyoming County (1 branch). Overall, the combined population of the Bank's primary andextended markets
was approximately 1 million based on 2010 census data.The three counties representing the majority of the
Bank's business - Steuben County, Allegany County andLivingston County, had a combined population of
approximately 209,000based on 2010 census data. The City of Hornell, where the administrative offices are
located, hasa population of approximately 9,000based on 2010 census data.

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank had a total of approximately 122 full-time equivalent
employees.

BUSINESS AND COMPETITION

Lending Activities

General

At December 31, 2014, the Bank's net loan portfolio totaled $265.9 million representing
approximately 56.0% of its $474.7 million of total assets at that date. The principal segments of loans in the
Bank's portfolio are commercial loans,residential mortgage loans,andconsumer loans.

Commercial Loans

The Bank originates secured and unsecured loans for commercial, corporate, agricultural, and
business purposes. At December 31, 2014, $174.4 million, or 64.8% of the Bank's total loan portfolio
consisted of commercial and agricultural loans. The Bank's commercial loans consist primarily of loans
secured by real estate, equipment, machinery and other corporate assets. Commercial loans are also made to
provide working capital to businesses in the form of lines of credit which may be secured by real estate,
accounts receivable, inventory, equipment, or other assets. The Bank had approximately $1.8 million of
vehicle dealership floor plan loans to finance retail inventory outstanding at both December 31, 2014, and
December 31, 2013. The financial condition and cashflow of commercial borrowers are monitored by the
submission of quarterly, semi-annual and annual corporate financial statements, personal financial
statements, and tax returns. The frequency of required financial information depends on the size and
complexity of the credit andthe collateral which secures the loan.
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The Bank does not have any concentrations of loans exceeding 10% of loans to borrowers engaged
in similar activities which would cause them to be similarly affected by economic or other conditions.

Residential Mortgage Loans

The Bank originates adjustable and fixed-rate residential mortgage loans and home equity loans and
lines of credit to its retail customers. The Bank has historically been a portfolio lender. The Bank originates
loans both for sale to the secondary market, and to hold in its portfolio. For example, during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2014, the Bank originated and sold $6.4 million of residential mortgage loans in
the secondary market. At December 31, 2014, $77.4 million, or 28.8% of the Bank's total loan portfolio
consisted of one to four family residential mortgage loans and home equity loans and lines of credit. Most of
these loans are secured by property located in the Bank's immediate market area.

The Bank may sell loans on the secondary market in order to manage liquidity and interest rate risk.
At December 31, 2014, the Bank was servicing $28.6million in residential mortgage loanspreviously sold to
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC).

The Bank originates residential mortgage loans in accordance with guidelines adopted by the Board
of Directors,andmodified from time to time.

Pursuant to these underwriting guidelines,the Bank will lend up to 80% of the appraisedvalue of the
property securing a single-family residential mortgage loan under certain circumstances. Generally, loansup
to 95% of appraised value may be granted to borrowers who obtain private mortgage insurance.

Fixed rate home equity loans generally have had a maximum term of fifteen years, but are recently
being offered with terms up to twenty years. Home equity lines of credit are variable rate open-end loans
that generally have terms of twenty years. If the Bank has the first mortgage,both of these types of loans can
generally be up to 85% of the appraised value in aggregate. If another bank has the first mortgage,both of
these types of loans are generally originated for up to 75% of appraised value, less the amount of any
existing prior liens on the property. The Bank secures these loans and lines with first or second mortgages.
Certain policy exceptions can be approved by officers designated by the Board of Directors.

Typically, the Bank requires fire and extended casualty insurance in order to protect the property se-

curing its residential and other mortgage loans.Generally, title insurance is required on all residential mort-

gage loans, but not on home equity loans and lines. However, an attorney's opinion letter may be requested
on any home equity loans and lines with loan amounts of $200,000 and greater.

Consumer Loans

The Bank offers a full range of consumer loans in order to meet demand for such financial services
from its customers and because such loans typically have shorter terms and higher interest rates than
commercial or residential mortgage loans. Consumer loans are made on both a direct and indirect basis and
may be secured or unsecured and include motor vehicle loans, personal loans, overdraft protection and
recreational vehicle loans.

The Bank's underwriting guidelines for such loans generally require that a borrower have been in his
or her present job for a minimum of two years. A credit report is obtained on each borrower. Generally, the
borrower's total debt to income ratio should not exceed 40%. Loans secured by motor vehicles may require
a 10% down payment. However, the ability of the borrower to repay is the primary consideration. At
December 31, 2014,$17.2million, or 6.4%of the Bank's total loans, consisted of consumer loans.
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Composition

The following table sets forth the Bank's loans by major categories as of the dates indicated:

At December At December

31,2014 31,2013
Consumer: (Dollars in Thousands)

Installment $ 17,050 15,257

Residential Mortgages

(includes home equity loans): 76,923 81,549

Commercial:

Business and agricultural 174,464 145,110

Total loans,gross 268,437 241,916

Net unearned loan origination fees and costs 520 457

Total loans 268,957 242,373

Allowance for loan losses (3,100) (2,860)

Net Loans $ 265,857 239,513

Policies and Procedures

The Bank's written lending policies require underwriting, loan documentation, and credit analysis
standards to be met prior to funding any loan. Lending authorities for the Bank's officers are established by
the Bank's Board of Directors consistent with the knowledge, training, experience, and lending record of
each officer. Loan decisions for credits in excess of $750,000are made by the Bank's Board of Directors, or
a Loan Committee comprised largely of Directors. After the loan has been approved and funded, continued
periodic review is required. Due to the secured nature of residential mortgage loans and the smaller balances
of individual installment loans,sampling techniques are used on a continuing basisfor credit reviews of these
loan types. The Bank has a policy of discontinuing accrual of interest income at the time the loan becomes
90 days delinquent, unless the loan is well secured and in process of collection. If circumstances warrant,
accrual of interest may be discontinued prior to 90 days. If a loss of loan principal is anticipated, any
payments received on that non-accrual loan is credited to principal until full recovery of past due payments
has been recognized. The loan is not restored to accrual status until the customer demonstrates the ability to
service the loan over its remaining life in accordance with the underlying note agreement. Loans are charged
off in whole or in part upon a determination that a loss will occur. The Bank considers a loan impaired
when, based on current information and events, it is probable that it will be unable to collect all amounts of
principal and interest under the original terms of the agreement. Accordingly, the Bank measures certain
impaired commercial loansbased on the present value of future cashflows discounted at the loan'seffective
interest rate, or at the loan'sobservable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent. The Bank collectively evaluates large groups of small balance,homogeneous loans which inplude
commercial loans less than $100,000, all residential mortgages, automobile, and other consumer loans. Non-

accrual and delinquent loans are reviewed on a monthly basis to determine potential losses from impairment.
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The following table sets forth information concerning loan delinquency and other non-performing assets.

At December 31, At December 31,
2014 2013

(Dollars in Thousands)
Loans accruing, but past due

30 to 89 days $ 1,727 1,887

Loans accruing, but past due

90 days and over 124 191
Total non-accrual loans 606 1,320
Other real estate owned, net of valuation allowance 1,591 666

Total non-performing assets $ 2,321 2,177

Non-accrual loans asa percentage of total
loans,net of unearned loan premiums
and fees 0.23% 0.54%

Non-performing assets as a percentage of
total assets 0.49% 0.50%

Non-performing assets are comprised of (i) loans accruing, but past due 90 daysand over, (ii) non-
accrualloans,and (iii) other real estate owned ("OREO").

At December 31, 2014, the Bank had $295,000 in loans that were considered impaired and had an
allocation allowance for probable losses compared to $1,148,000 at December 31, 2013. Impairment applies
to loans that are identified for evaluation on an individual basis. Loans are considered impaired when, based
on current information and events, it is probable that the creditor will be unable to collect all interest and
principal payments due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. The impairment allowance
associated with these loans at December 31, 2014, was $88,000 compared to $274,000 at December 31,
2013. There were not any loans considered impaired that required no allocated reserve at December 31,
2014, compared to $167,000 at December 31, 2013. At December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, non-

accrual loanswere 0.23%and 0.54%,respectively, of total loans, while non-performing assets were 0.49%
and 0.50%,respectively, of total assets. At both December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, all problem
loans were either classified as impaired or non-performing. Potential problem loans are loans which
management has serious doubts as to the borrowers' ability to comply with the present repayment terms and
loans which management is actively monitoring due to changes in the borrowers' financial condition.
Impaired loans,non-performing loans, and potential problem loans have been considered in management's
analysis of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses.

At December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, there were no other interest-bearing assets that
would be classified asimpaired, non-performing, or potential problem loans if such assets were loans. Other
interest- bearing assets include investment securities, federal funds sold, and interest-bearing balances with
other banks.

Real estate acquired by the bank as a result of foreclosure and/or deed in lieu of foreclosure is
classified as OREO until it is sold. Write-downs from cost to estimated fair value which are required at the
time of foreclosure are charged to the allowance for loan losses. After transfer, the property is carried at the
lower of cost or fair value, less estimated selling expenses. Adjustments to the carrying value of such
properties that result from subsequent declines in value are charged to operations in the period in which the
declines occur. As of December 31, 2014 and December 31,2013, the Bank had $1,852,000and $946,000
respectively in OREO. The valuation allowance as of December 31, 2014, was $261,000 compared to
$280,000at December 31, 2013.
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Allowance for Loan Losses

Management makes a continuing determination as to an appropriate provision from earnings to
maintain an allowance for loan losses that is adequate for probable incurred losses in the loan portfolio. In
making the determination, management utilizes a loan loss reserve analysis format which considers several
factors including: loans criticized internally and/or externally by regulators and/or the Bank's independent
loan review firm, delinquent loans to include the amount and trends in delinquencies, projected future losses
based upon historical data for loans which are currently performing as agreed, growth in the various
segments of the Bank's loan portfolio, analytical review of loan charge-off experience, other relevant
historical and peer statistical ratios, and management's judgment with respect to local and general economic
conditions and their impact on the existing loan portfolio.

The Bank has no credit exposure to foreign countries or foreign borrowers, or to "highly leveraged
transactions," as defined by the Federal Reserve Board.

Although the Bank uses its best judgment in underwriting each loan, industry experience indicates
that a portion of the Bank's loans nevertheless will become delinquent. Regardless of the underwriting
criteria utilized by banks, losses may be experienced as a result of many factors beyond their control
including, among other things, changes in market conditions affecting the value of collateral and unrelated
problems affecting the repayment capacity of the borrower.

The following table sets forth year-end balances and changes in the allowance for loan lossesand
certain ratios for the years ended December 31,2014 and 2013:

At or For the Year At or For the Year
Ended December 31, Ended December 31,

2014 2013
(Dollars in Thousands)

Average recorded investment in loans outstanding $ 249,858 237,933

Balance at beginning of year $ 2,860 2,875

Charge-offs:
Commercial (31) (150)
Residential real estate (15) (12)
Consumer (155) (97)

Total charge-offs (201) (259)

Recoveries:

Commercial 37 27
Residential real estate --- ----

Consumer 47 63
Total recoveries 84 90

Net charge-offs (117) (169)
Provision for loan losses 357 154

Balance at end of period $ 3,100 2,860

As a percent of average loans:

Net charge-offs (annualized) 0.05% 0.07%
Provision for loan losses (annualized) 0.14% 0.06%
Allowance for loan losses 1.24% 1.20%

Allowance asa percentage of
each of the following:

Total loans,net of unearned

loan premiums and fees 1.15% 1.18%
Total non-accrual and delinquent loans 90 days

and over and still accruing 424.66% 189.28%
Total non-accrual loans 511.55% 216.67%
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The Bank'smanagement is unable to determine in what loan category future charge-offs and recover-

ies may occur. However, the following schedule sets forth the allocation of the allowance for loan losses
among various categories. The allocation is based upon historical experience and specific reserves allocated
to currently impaired loans. The entire allowance for loan losses is available for probable incurred losses
which may occur in any loan category.

At December 31,2014 At December 31,2013

Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans
in Each in Each

Category Category
Amount to Loans Amount to Loans

(Dollars in Thousands)

Allocation of allowance

for loan losses:

Commercial $ 2,579 65% 2,354 60%
Residential Real Estate 132 29% 187 34%

Consumer 179 6% 128 6%

Unallocated 210 n/a 191 n/a

Total $ 3,100 100% 2,860 100%

Securities Portfolio

The Bank maintains a securities portfolio for the secondary application of funds as well as a source
of liquidity. The Bank classifies its securities as either "available for sale" or "held to maturity," and does
not hold any securities considered to be trading. Held to maturity securities are those securities that the Bank
has the positive intent and the ability to hold until maturity. All other securities not included in held to
maturity are classified as available for sale.

Available for sale securities are recorded at fair value. Held to maturity securities are recorded at
cost, adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums or discounts. Unrealized holding gains and
losses,net of the related tax effect, on available for sale securities are excluded from earnings and are
reported asaccumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as a separate component of shareholders'equity.
Transfers of securities between categories are recorded at fair value at the date of transfer. The unrealized
holding gains or losses included in the separate component of equity for securities transferred from available
for sale to held to maturity are maintained andamortized into earnings over the remaining life of the sectirity

as an adjustment to yield in a manner consistent with the amortization or accretion of premium or discount
on the associated security. A decline in the fair value of any available for sale or held to maturity secttrity

below cost, deemed other than temporary, is charged to earnings for the portion related to credit and the
portion related to other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income.
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The following table sets forth the amortized cost and fair value of securities as of December 31,
2014, and December 31, 2013:

At December 31,2014 At December 31,2013

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

Available-for-sale Cost Value Cost Value

(Dollars in Thousands)

Debt Securities:

U.S.Agency $ 43,035 44,740 41,241 42,050
State & Municipal 43,972 45,116 47,314 47,786

U.S.Agency MBS 71,553 72,648 . 63,787 63,572

Corporate Bonds 3,134 3,174 1,020 1,044
Total Securities $ 161,694 165,678 153,362 154,452

At December 31,2014 At December 31, 2013

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

Held-to-maturity Cost Value Cost Value

(Dollars in Thousands)

Debt Securities:

State & Municipal $ 9,302 9,424. 7,031 7,161
Total Securities $ 9,302 9,424 7,031 7,161

As of December 31, 2014, 25.6% of the Bank's total securities portfolio was held in U.S.
Government Sponsored Agency Securities, 41.5% in U.S.Government Sponsored Agency mortgage-backed
securities, 31.1% was held in municipal securities, and 1.8% was held in US Corporate Bonds. All
mortgage-backed securities are issued by or collateralized by U.S.Government Sponsored Agencies and
backed by residential loans. The total carrying value of securities increased from $161.5 million at
December 31, 2013, to $175.0 million at December 31, 2014, due to growth in deposits. At December 31,
2014, securities having a fair value of $156.3 million were pledged as collateral for public funds and other
purposes asrequired or permitted by law. According to the following tables, 28.7% of the debt securities in
the portfolio havecontractual maturities within five years. Debt securities are shown at their stated maturity
dates for the purposes of this table.

At December 31,2014

After 1 After 5

Year But Years But

Within 1 Within 5 Within 10 After 10 .
Available-for-sale Year Years Years Years Total

(Dollars in Thousands)

Amortized Cost:

U.S.Agency $ 3,014 19,374 20,647 --- 43,035

State & Municipal 2,430 13,828 24,761 . 2,953 43,972

U.S.Agency MBS --- 675 10,277 60,601 71,553

Corporate Bonds --- 519 2,615 --- 3,134
Total debt securities

at amortized cost $ 5,444 34,396 58,300 63,554 161,694
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At December 31,2014

After 1 After 5

Year But Years But

Within 1 Within 5 Within 10 After 10

Available-for-sale Year Years Years Years Total

(Dollars in Thousands)

Fair Value:

U.S.Agency $ 3,063 19,901 21,776 --- 44,740

State & Municipal 2,449 14,292 25,396 2,979 45,116

U.S.Agency MB --- 713 10,690 61,245 72,648

Corporate Bonds --- 530 2,644 --- 3,174
Total debt securities

at fair value $ 5,512 35,436 60,506 64,224 165,678

Weighted average interest rate

of debt securities 3.21% 2.82% 2.96% 2.38% 2.71%

At December 31,2014

After 1 After 5

Year But Years But

Within 1 Within 5 . Within 10 After 10

Held-to-maturity Year Years Years Years Total

(Dollars in Thousands)

Amortized Cost:

State & Municipal $ 7,673 1,575 54 --- 9,302

Total debt securities

at amortized cost $ 7,673 1,575 54 --- 9,302

Fair Value:

State & Municipal $ 7,698 1,666 60 --- 9,424
Total debt securities

at fair value $ 7,698 1,666 60 --- 9,424

Weighted average interest rate

of debt securities 1.27% 3.41% 3.89% --- 1.65%

Deposits

The following table sets forth the breakdown of deposits as of December 31, 2014, and December
31, 2013. The Bank's total deposits increased to $383.0 million at December 31, 2014, from $353.0 million
at December 31, 2013. The change wasspread throughout the categories listed below.

At December 31, At December 31,
2014 2013

(Dollars in Thousands)

Non-interest bearing $ 97,434 83,314

Interest bearing NOW and Money Market 86,569 86,951

Savings 61,658 57,783

Time deposits 137,703 124,904

Total deposits $ 383,364 352,952
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Included in time deposits are certificates of deposit of $100,000 and brokered deposits.Brokered
deposits amounted to $38,945,000at December 31, 2014, compared to $37,044,000 at December 31, 2013.
The following table breaksout these higher balance accounts andalso the maturities of the categories. Of the
Bank'scertificates of deposit of $100,000or more at December 31, 2014, $39.6million are from local public
entities (such as counties, school districts, villages). These deposits are considered a stable source of funding
for the Bank.

Certificates Certificates

$100,000or more at less than $100,000at

December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Maturing in: (Dollars in Thousands)

3 months or less $ 55,895 43,747 10,679 9,126
3 - 12 months 11,846 15,111 21,352 25,021

Over 12 months 7,699 5,854 30,232 26,045
Total $ 75,440 64,712 62,263 60,192

Borrowings

The Bank has the ability to borrow money from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (the
"FHLB"). This source of funds is used as a liquidity tool for the Bank. At December 31, 2014, the Bank had
$38.5 million in borrowings from the FHLB, compared to $38.0 million at December 31, 2013. The
following is a tabulation of outstanding advances from the FHLB as of December 31, 2014 (in thousands):

Weighted Average
Maturity Year Amount Interest Rate

2015 $ 22,500 0.77%
2016 11,500 0.85%
2017 1,500 1.16%
2018 1,500 1.61%
2019 1,500 1.98%

Total $ 38,500 0.89%

Subordinated Debentures

On July 16, 2007, Steuben Statutory Trust II, a trust formed by the Company, completed a pooled
private offering of $2,000,000of trust preferred securities. The Company issued $2,062,000 of subordinated
debentures to the trust in exchange for ownership of all common security of the trust and the proceeds of the
preferred securities sold by the trust. The trust is not consolidated with the Company's financial statements,
but rather the subordinated debentures are shown as a liability. The Company's investment in the comm'on
stock of the trust was $62,000 and included in Other Assets.

The Company may redeem the subordinated debentures in whole or in part, in a principal amount
with integral multiples of $1, on or after September 15,2012 at 100% of the principal amount,plus accrued
andunpaid interest. The subordinated debentures are also redeemable in whole or in part from time to time,
upon occurrence of specific events defined within the trust indenture. The Company has the option to defer
interest payments on the subordinated debentures from time to time for a period not to exceed five
consecutive years.

The subordinated debentures may be included in Tier I capital (with certain limitations applicable)
under current regulatory guidelines and interpretations. The subordinated debentures have a variable rate of
interest equal to the three month London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 1.55%.This rate resets on a
quarterly basisand was 1.7906%at December 31, 2014.
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Interest Rate Risk Management

Assetiliability management involves managing the extent to which interest-sensitive assets and inter-

est-sensitive liabilities are matched. The Bank typically defines interest-sensitive assets and liabilities as
those that reprice within one year or less. Maintaining an appropriate match is a method of avoiding wide
fluctuations in net interest margin during periods of changing interest rates.

The difference between interest-sensitive assets and interest-sensitive liabilities is known as the

"interest sensitivity gap" ("GAP"). A positive GAP occurs when interest-sensitive assets exceed interest-

sensitive liabilities repricing in the same time periods, and a negative GAP occurs when interest-sensitive
liabilities exceed interest-sensitive assets repricing in the same time period. A negative GAP ratio suggests
that a financial institution may be better positioned to take advantage of declining interest rates rather than
increasing interest rates, and a positive GAP ratio suggests the converse.

The Bank attempts to manage its assets and liabilities in a manner that stabilizes net interest income
and net economic value over a broad range of interest rate environments. Adjustments to the mix of assets
and liabilities are made periodically in an effort to give the Bank dependable and steady growth in net
interest income regardless of the behavior of general interest rates in the economy. The Bank did take
$197,000 in gains on sales of securities during 2014 compared to none during 2013. This was done to
restructure the investment portfolio to help mitigate the overall interest rate risk of the Bank. The following
table presents a summaryof the Bank's interest rate sensitivity at December 31, 2014:

Interest Rate Sensitivity at December 31,2014
(Dollars in Thousands)

Over 1 year
One year through Over 5

or less 5 years years Total
Interest-earning assets: (1) (Dollars in Thousands)

Loans (2) $ 137,468 109,813 20,550 267,831
Securities 28,529 82,492 63,959 174,980
Interest bearing due from banks 1,866 --- --- 1,866

Total $ 167,863 192,305 84,509 444,677
Interest-bearingliabilities:

Interest-bearing deposits (3) $ 248,526 37,003 401 285,930
Borrowings 22,500 16,000 ---- 38,500
Trust Preferred Securities 2,062 ---- ---- 2,062

Total $ 273,088 53,003 401 326,492
Interest rate sensitivity gap:

Interval $ (105,225) 139,302 84,108 118,185
Cumulative $ (105,225) 34,077 118,185 N/A

Ratio of cumulative gap to total rate sensitive assets (23.66)% 7.66% 26.58% N/A

(1) Adjustable and floating-rate assets are included in the period in which interest rates are next scheduled to
adjust rather than in the period in which they are due,and fixed-rate assets are included in the periods in which
they are anticipated to be paid based on amortization schedules and prepayment histories.

(2) Balances have beenreducedfor non-accruing loans,which amounted to $606,000at December31, 2014. *

(3) The Bank's negotiable order of withdrawal ("NOW") accounts,statement savingsaccounts and money market
deposit accounts are generally subject to immediate withdrawal and are included in the "one year or less"
category.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the foregoing table. For
example, although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to repricing, they may
react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates. Also, the interest rates on certain types of assets
and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types
may lag behind changes in market rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate mortgage loans,
have features which restrict changes in interest rate on a short-term basis and over the life of the assets.
Further, in the event of a change in interest rates, prepayment and early withdrawal levels would likely
deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the table. Finally, the ability of many borrowers to
service their debt may decrease in the event of an interest rate increase.
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Average Balances and Yields

The following table presents the total dollar amount of interest income from average interest-earning
assetsand the resulting rates,as well as the interest expense on average interest-bearing liabilities, expressed
both in dollars and rates, and the net interest margin. Net interest margin is influenced by the level and
relative mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. All average balances are daily average
balances. Nonaccrual loans are included in average loan balances. The average balance of investment
securities is presented at fair value for available for sale securities, and amortized cost for held-to-maturity
securities.

Twelve Months Ended December 31,
2014 2013

Average Average Average Average

Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

(Dollars In Thousands)

Interest-Earning Assets:

Loans $ 249,858 12,056 4.83% 237,502 11,723 4.94%
Investment Securities 177,863 4,445 2.50% 155,050 3,984 2.57%
Other 852 --- --- . 1,143 --- 0.03%

Total Interest-Earning Assets $ 428,573 16,501 3.85% 393,695 15,707. 3.99%
Non-earning Assets 31,998 31,805

Total Assets $ 460,571 425,500

Interest-Bearing Liabilities:

NOW, MMA and SavingsDeposits $ 160,646 50 0.03% 153,462 45 0.03%

Time Deposits 130,566 649 0.50% 115,408 595 0.52%
Borrowings 33,264 330 0.99% 27,659 349 1.26%
Subordinated Debentures 2,062 37 1.79% 2,062 38 1.84%

Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities $ 326,538 1,066 0.33% 298,591 1,027 0.34%

Non-Interest Bearing Deposits 85,982 82,594
Other Non-Interest Bearing Liabilities 2,951 3,192
Shareholders' Equity 45,100 41,123

Total Liabilities and

Shareholders'Equity $ 460,571 425,500

Net Interest Income 15,435 3.52% 14,680 3.65%

Net Yield on Interest Earning Assets 3.60% 3.73%

Average Interest-Earning Assets to

Average Interest-Bearing Liabilities 131.25% 131.85%
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table describes the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in volume of
interest-related assetsand liabilities have affected the Bank's interest income and expense during the periods
indicated. For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is
provided on changes attributable to (1) changes in volume (change in volume multiplied by prior year rate),
(2) changes in rate (change in rate multiplied by prior year volume) and (3) total change in rate and volume.
The combined effect of changes in both rate and volume has been allocated proportionately to the change due
to rate andthe change due to volume.

For Twelve Months Ended December31,

2014vs.2013 2013vs.2012

Increase(Decrease) Total Increase(Decrease) Total

Due To Increase Due To Increase

Volume Rate (Decrease) Volume Rate (Decrease)

(Dollars in Thousands)

Interest-Earning Assets:

Fed Funds and Interest Bearing Deposits $ --- --- --- --- --- ---

U.S.Agencies & MBS 479 (4) 475 203 . (191) 12

State & Municipal 9 (79) 70 127 (89) 38

Other StocksandBonds 67 (11) 56 28 (16) 12

Total Investments and Other $ 555 (94) 461 358 (296) 62

Commercial Loans $ 858 (39) 819 647 (183) 464

Mortgage Loans (282) (143) (425) (64) (265) (329)
ConsumerLoans (incl. H/E Lines) 12 (73) (61) (78) (142) (220)

Total Loans 588 (255) 333 505 (590) (85)

Total Interest-Earning Assets $ 1,143 (349) 794 863 (886) (23)

Interest-Bearing Liabilities:

NOW, MMA and SavingsAccounts $ 2 3 5 3 1 4

Time Deposits 75 (21) 54 18 (254) (236)

Total Deposits $ 77 (18) 59 21 (253) (232)

FHLB Advances 56 (75) (19) 179 (239) (60)

Subordinated Debentures --- (1) (1) --- (70) (70)

Total Borrowings 56 (76) (20) 179 (309) (130)

Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities $ 133 (94) 39 200 (562) (362)

Increase(Decrease)in Net Interest Income $ 1,010 (255) 755 663 (324) 339
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REGULATION AND SUPERVISION

The references under this heading to various aspects of supervision and regulation are brief summar-
ies which do not purport to be complete. However, to the knowledge of the Company's management the
summaries provide all material disclosure with respect to such superyision and regulations.

The Bank is chartered under the Banking Law of New York State and, as such, is examined and
supervised by the New York State Department of Financial Services. The Bank's deposits are insured by the
FDIC to the extent provided in the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. The Bank has elected not to be a state
member bank of the Federal Reserve System. Therefore, as a "state non-member bank," the FDIC is the
federal agency responsible for regulation of the Bank, and the Bank is subject to examination and supervision
by the FDIC.

As a New York State chartered "non-member bank," the Bank is subject to numerous New York
State and federal laws regulating, among other things, the Bank'sconduct of its banking business (including
loans, deposits and trust business),the capitalization and liquidity of the Bank, the opening and closing of
branch offices, the issuance of Bank securities, and the Bank's engagement in activities closely related to
banking.

The Company is a bank holding company within the meaning of the federal Bank Holding Company
Act, and thus it is subject to the provisions of that Act. This requires the Company to be registered as a bank
holding company with the Federal Reserve Board, which in turn requires it to file periodic andannual reports
and other information concerning its own business operations and those of its subsidiaries with the Federal
Reserve Board. Generally, the Company is subject to the Federal Reserve Board's ongoing supervision and
examination.

In addition, under the Bank Holding Company Act, a bank holding company must obtain Federal
Reserve Board approval before it acquires, directly or indirectly, ownership or control of any voting shares of
a second or subsequent bank if, after such acquisition, it would own or control more than 5% of such shares,
unless it already owns or controls a majority of such shares. Federal Reserve Board approval must also be
obtained before a bank holding company acquires all or substantially all of the assets of another bank or
merges or consolidates with another bank holding company. Furthermore, any acquisition by a bank holding
company of more than 5% of the voting shares,or of all or substantially all of the assets, of a bank located in
another state may not be approved by the Federal Reserve Board unless the laws of that second state
specifically authorize such an acquisition.

The Bank Holding Company Act also prohibits a bank holding company, with certain limited
exceptions, from acquiring or retaining direct or indirect ownership or control of more than 5% of the voting
shares of any company which is not a bank, or from engaging in any activities other than those of banking or
of managing or controlling banks or furnishing services to or performing services for its subsidiaries. The
principal exception to these prohibitions involves certain specified activities which may be engaged in by the
Company and its subsidiaries, including those activities which the Federal Reserve Board may find, by order
or regulation, to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be a proper incident
thereto.

A bank holding company may not, without providing 45-days prior notice to the Federal Reserve
Board, purchase or redeem its own stock if the gross consideration to be paid therefore, when added to the
net consideration paid by the Company for all purchases or redemptions by the Company of its equity
securities within the preceding twelve months, will equal 10% or more of the Company'sconsolidated net
worth.

The Federal Reserve Board possesses cease and desist powers over bank holding companies and
their non-bank subsidiaries if their actions represent anunsafe or unsound practice or a violation of law.

In addition, the Company is required under the New York State Banking Law to obtain the prior
approval of the New York State Department of Financial Services Board by a three-fifths vote of all the
members thereof before the Company obtains, directly or indirectly, ownership or control of (including the
power to vote) more than 10% of the voting stock of a second banking institution located in New York State.
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In 1999,Congress passed the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act. This law enables affiliations among banks,
securities firms and insurance companies that would allow bank holding companies to offer their customers a
broad range of non-banking services that are, however, financial in nature, such as securities underwriting,
insurance, and merchant and investment banking. In order to engage in these activities, a bank holding
company must qualify with the Federal Reserve Board as a "financial holding company". The Company has
qualified with the Federal Reserve asa financial holding company.

In 2010, the President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Act. This law resulted in significant changes
to the banking industry. The provisions that have received the most public attention have been those that
apply to larger financial institutions; however, the Dodd-Frank Act does contain numerous other provisions
that affect all banks andbank holding companies and will impact how the Company and the Bank handle
their operations. The Dodd-Frank Act requires various federal agencies, including those that regulate the
Company and the Bank, to promulgate new rules and regulations and to conduct various studies and reports
for Congress. The federal agencies are in the process of promulgating thee rules and regulations and have
been given significant discretion in drafting such rules and regulations. Several of the provisions of the
Dodd-Frank Act may have the consequence of increasing the Bank's expenses, decreasing its revenues and
changing the activities in which it chooses to engage. The specific impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our
current activities or new financial activities we may consider in the future, our financial performance, and the
markets in which we operate will depend on the manner in which the relevant agencies develop and
implement the required rules and regulations and the reaction of market participants to these regulatory
developments.

The Dodd-Frank Act includes provisions that, among other things:
• Change the assessment base for federal deposit insurance from the amount of insured deposits to

consolidated assets less tangible capital, eliminate the ceiling on the size of the Department
Insurance Fund (DIF), and increase the floor applicable to the size of the DIF.

• Make permanent the $250,000 limit on deposits for federal deposit insurance, retroactive to January
1,2008.

• Repeal the federal prohibitions on the payment of interest on demand deposits, thereby permitting
depository institutions to pay interest on business transaction and other accounts.

• Centralize responsibility for consumer financial protection by creating a new agency responsible for
implementing, examining, and enforcing compliance with federal consumer financial laws under the
newly created Consumer Financial Protection Bureau ("CFPB")

• Promulgate or revise regulations relating to the origination and servicing of consumer obligations,
including residential mortgages.

On July 10, 2013, the FDIC adopted new rules for risk-based and leverage capital requirements for banks.
The interim final rule implements a revised definition of regulatory capital, a new common equity tier 1
minimum capital requirement, a higher minimum tier 1 capital requirement and changes to the risk-based
capital rules. In addition, the interim final rule establishes limits on a bank's capital distribution and certain
discretionary bonus payments if the bank does not hold a specified amount of common equity tier 1 capital iri
addition to the amount necessary to meet its minimum risk-based capital requirements. The interim final rule
amends the methodologies for determining risk-weighted assets for all FDIC supervised institutions. The
rule applies to all banks and to bank holding companies with assets of more than $500 million. The final rule
became effective on January 1, 2015. It is anticipated that both the Company and the Bank will continue to
exceed the measures to be considered well-capitalized.

Future Legislation and Regulatory Initiatives

It is likely that additional legislation will be considered by Congress that, if enacted could have a
significant impact on the operations of banks and bank holding companies, including Steuben Trust
Corporation and the Bank.
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PROPERTIES ,

As of December 31, 2014, the Bank has a branch office network of fourteen offices. Of this total,
the Bank owns eleven of such properties, including that in which its main office is located in Hornell, New
York. The remaining branch locations are leased.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the sale of any shares of Common Stock by the Company to the Plan will be
used for the Company's general corporate purposes, including investments in, extensions of credit or
advances to, the Bank.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The Company is authorized to issue up to 500,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock, par value
$10.00 per share,and up to 5,000,000shares of Common Stock,par value $1.00per share.

As of December 31, 2014, 1,738,372shares of Common Stock were issued,and the Company had
416 shareholders of record. As of December 31, 2014, the Company held 100,649 shares of its Common
Stockin treasury.

Common Stock

As of December 31, 2014, 1,738,372 shares of the Company's Common Stock were issued, and
3,261,628shares of Common Stock currently remain available for issuance at the discretion of the Board of
Directors. These shares may be issued for such purposes as financings, acquisitions, stock dividends, stock
splits, employee incentive plans, dividend reinvestment plans and other similar purposes. However, these
additional shares may also be used by the Board of Directors (if consistent with its fiduciary responsibilities)
to deter future attempts to gain control over the Company.

The Company's dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plan is issued under Regulation A of the
Securities Act of 1933. Currently, Regulation A is an exemption for public offerings not exceeding $5
million in any 12-month period. This amount is the current requirement, and may change from time to time.
To rely on this exemption, the Company has filed this offering statement, as amended,with the SEC on Form
1-A.

Voting Rights. Each share of Common Stock is entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to a
vote of the Company'sCommon shareholders. Such shareholders do not have cumulative voting rights with
respect to any matters to be voted upon, including the election of Directors.

Dividends. Under the New York Business Corporation Law, dividends are payable out of surplus
only, and may be declared and paid by the Company except when the Company currently is insolvent or
would thereby be made insolvent. In addition, under the New York Banking Law, the Bank may only pay
dividends to the Company up to an amount equal to its net profits for that year combined with its retained net
profits of the preceding two years. At December 31, 2014, the Bank's dividend paying ability was.
$7,234,000.

The Company paid $1.05 per share in dividends during the twelve months ended December 31,
2014, versus no dividends during the year ended December 31, 2013. In the past, dividends have been paid
on the Company's Common Stock on a quarterly basis, and the usual quarterly dividend payment dates have
been in February, May, August and November each year. There was no dividend paid in 2013 as an
accelerated dividend waspaid in December 2012 due to uncertainty in potential tax law changes.

Liquidation Rights. In the event of liquidation, holders of the Company's Common Stock will be
entitled to receive, pro rata,any corporate assets remaining for distribution after all other corporate debts and
obligations are satisfied.

Preemptive Rights. Holders of the Company's Common Stock do not have any preemptive rights
with respect to any additional issuances by the Companyof its capital stock or other securities.
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Provisions for Corporate Defense. The Company's Certificate of Incorporation contains several
provisions designed to assure continuity of management and to discourage sudden changes in control of the
Board of Directors. For example, it states that the affirmative vote of 75% of the entire Board of Directors or
75% of the Common Shares entitled to vote is required either (1) to amend the provisions in the Bylaws
regulating the number and qualifications of Directors and any restrictions on Directors, or (2) remove a
Director without cause.

Further, under the New York Business Corporation Law, and in the absence of any additional
requirements imposed by a corporation's certificate of incorporation, mergers, consolidations and most other
business combinations must be approved by two-thirds of the outstanding voting common shares. Thus, a
bidder could acquire two-thirds of the outstanding common stock through any combination of private
purchase,open market purchase or tender offer, and then complete the acquisition by a business combination
such as a merger, sale of assets or other transaction and force out the remaining shareholders. However, the
Company's Certificate of Incorporation requires the affirmative vote of either (a) 80% of the entire Board of
Directors and 66 2/3% of the outstanding Common Shares entitled to vote, or (b) 75% of the outstanding
Common Shares entitled to vote in favor of either (i) any merger or consolidation of the Company or any
subsidiary under the terms of which the Common Shareholders of the Company shall, after the transaction,
own less than 75% of the resulting entity, or (ii) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the
Company or any subsidiary.

In addition, the Company's Certificate of Incorporation requires any "Business Combination," as
defined in the Certificate, with a "Major Stockholder," also therein defined, to be approved either (1) by the
Board of Directors prior to the Major Stockholder involved in the Business Combination becoming a Major
Stockholder, or (2) by unanimous approval of the Board of Directors prior to the Major Stockholder
becoming such, as well as approval by a majority of the "Continuing Directors," asdefined in the Certificate
of Incorporation, of the Business Combination, or (3) by 75% of the total number of Continuing Directors, or
(4) by 75% of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company as well as 75% of the outstanding Common
Stock owned by persons other than any Major Stockholder.

Notwithstanding the requirements described in the preceding paragraph, the Company's Certificate
of Incorporation provides that no Business Combination with a Major Stockholder may be approved unless
the fair market value of the consideration received by the Company's Common Shareholders is not less than
the highest per share price paid by the Major Stockholder for the Company's stock during the two years
preceding the announcement of the proposed Business Combination.

For the purpose of the regulation of Business Combinations in the Company's Certificate of
Incorporation, the term "Business Combination" is defined to include any merger or consolidation with, or
sale of assets to, directly or indirectly, a Major Stockholder or an affiliate or associate of a Major
Stockholder; the term "Major Stockholder" is defined to include any person which, together with its affiliates
and associates, is the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the outstanding shares of voting stock of the .

Company; and the term "Continuing Directors" is defined to include members of the Board of Directors prior
to the time that a Major Stockholder becomes a Major Stockholder.

The Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the Directors of the Company, in taking any action
(including actions on Business Combinations), to consider, without limitation, both the long term and the
short term interests of the Company and its shareholders, employees, customers, creditors and the
communities in which it operates.

While the Company believes that the provisions described above will best serve the interests of its
shareholders,the provisions could also discourage takeover attempts, which some shareholders might deem
to be in their interest, and may tend to perpetuate existing management.

Other Matters. American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, LLC, Brooklyn, New York, is the
Company's transfer agent. The shares of the Company's Common Stock do not have any redemption or
conversion provisions applicable thereto and under New York Business Corporation Law Section 630,
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during any time in which the shares of the Company's Common Stock are not listed on a national securities
exchange or regularly quoted in an over-the-counter market by one or more members of a national or an
affiliated securities association, the ten largest common shareholders of the Company will jointly and

severally be personally liable for all debts, wages and salaries due and owing to any of the Company's
laborers, servants or employees (other than contractors) for services performed by them for the Company.
Except as indicated above, no holders of the Company's Common Stock will be personally liable for the
debts of the Company solely by virtue of their ownership or control of shares of Common Stock.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Directors and executive officers of the Company and key officers of the Bank as of December
31, 2014,are asfollows:

Current

Position (s) with Principal Occupation During Past
Company Director Five Years and/or Position(s) Held

Name Age. (or Bank) Since with the Company (or Bank)

Robert U.Blades, Jr. 67 Director 1985 1982- 2010 Presidentof A.L.Blades and Sons,
Inc. (bridge and road contractor)
2010 - Present - President of Blades Holding

Company, Inc.

Brenda L.Copeland 63 President,Chief 2003 2003 - Present - President & CEO of Steuben Trust
Executive Officer Corporation and Steuben Trust Company
and Director

Michael E.Davidson 59 Director 2008 2003 - Present- President A. Davidson & Bros. Inc.
Furniture Retailer

CharlesM.Edmondson 72 Director 2005 2000 - Present - President,Alfred University

Jack R.Emrick 60 Senior Vice N/A 1992- Present - SeniorVice President andRetail
President and Bank Manager-Steuben Trust Company
Retail Bank Manager

Stoner E.Horey 68 Director 1992 2003 - 2008 Director of Geriatrics and Extended
Care at Bath VA Medical Center

2009 - 2011 Hospitalist, The Exigence Group
2011 - Present - Physician, Delphi Medical Services

Sue A. Lacy 59 SeniorVice N/A 1988- Present - Human ResourcesManager
President and Steuben Trust Company
Human Resources

Manager

L. Victor Myers 67 Director 2011 2005- 2010 SVP & Commercial & Agricultural
Loan Officer Steuben Trust Company
2011 - Present - Retired

JamesP.Nicoloff 60 Executive Vice N/A 1992- Present - Executive Vice Presidentand Chief
President andChief Financial Officer-Steuben Trust Corporation and
Financial Officer Steuben Trust Company

Charles D.Oliver 72 Director 1992 Presently is,and hasbeenfor the past5 years
GeneralManager
CharlesF.Oliver & Son (farm machinery dealer)

Amanda S.Parker 50 Director 2012 1994-2014 CPA/Partner Bonadio & Company
2014-Present - Partner - Parker & Lubanski, CPAs
LLP
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Current
Position (s) with Principal Occupation During Past
Company Director Five Years and/or Position(s) Held

Name A_a (or Bank) ince with the Company (or Bank)
Amber R.Phelps 48 Executive Vice N/A 1995 - 2004- Assistant Vice President & Information

President,IT Systems Systems Officer-Steuben Trust Company
and Operations Manager 2004 - 2006 Vice President& Information Systems

Officer-Steuben Trust Company
2006-2012 - SeniorVice President& Manager
Of Information Technology Department-Steuben
Trust Company

2012-Present - Executive Vice President,IT Systems
and Operations Manager-Steuben Trust Company

David A.Shults 71 Chairman of 1971 Presently is, and hasbeen for the past 5 years,
the Board and Partner, Shults& Shults,Attorneys;
Director General Counsel to Bank

Eric Shults 72 Director 1974 Presently is,andhasbeen for the past5 years,
Partner, Shults & Shults,Attorneys;
General Counsel to Bank

Sherry C.Walton 62 Director 1999 Retired - Community Volunteer

Natalie M.Willoughby 60 SeniorVice N/A 2002 - 2005 Vice President& Relationship
Presidentand Manager - The Private Bank of Bank of America,
Manager of Trust & Rochester,NY
Financial Services 08/2005 -06/2006 Vice President andManager
Department of Trust & Financial Services Department-Steuben

Trust Company
6/2006 - Present - Senior Vice President and

Manager of Trust & Financial Services Department-
Steuben Trust Company

Gregory J.Wood 54 Senior Vice President N/A 2005-2009 VP Commercial Lending, Bank of Castile
Commercial Loan 2010 - Present - Senior Vice President Commercial

Manager Lending, SteubenTrust Company

Each of the officers of the Company and of the Bank serves at the discretion of its respective Board
of Directors. All Directors hold office for a one-year term until the next annual meeting of shareholders and
until their successors are elected andhave been qualified.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Compensation of Directors

All Directors of the Company are also directors of the Bank. During 2014, the Bank held 12 Board
meetings and 28 Committee meetings. Beginning in May 2014, directors received $650 for each Board
meeting attended and $350 for each Committee meeting attended. Directors also receive a $4,200 retainer
fee ($2,000 additional for the board chairman, plus an additional $500 for the chairs of the Audit, Personnel,
Loan, Trust and Scholarship committees) if they attend at least 60% of the Board meetings.

Executive Compensation

The following table sets forth the aggregate annual remuneration that was paid for the year ending
December 31, 2014, for each of the five highest paid persons who were then officers of the Company or the
Bank:

Capacities in Which Remuneration Aggregate
Name of Individual Received Remuneration

Brenda L. Copeland President, Chief Executive Officer $683,846

JamesP.Nicoloff Executive Vice President, Treasurer $222,712
and Chief Financial Officer

Gregory J.Wood Senior Vice President and Commercial $180,953
Loan Manager of Steuben Trust Company

Amber R.Phelps Executive Vice President $155,894
IT Systems & Operations Manager of
Steuben Trust Company

Hans R.Kunze Senior Vice President and Commercial $148,886
Loan Officer and Farm Department
Manager of Steuben Trust Company

Under the Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement (Deferral Agreement) with the Company,
any officer with a title of senior vice president or above is eligible to participate in the plan and have a por-

tion of their annual compensation deferred. Such deferral amounts are placed in an interest-bearing account
and will be repaid to the participants in accordance with the terms of their Deferral Agreement.

On April 15, 2010, the Company's shareholders approved the adoption of a share based
compensation plan, the Steuben Trust Corporation 2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan (the "Incentive
Plan") for all employees. The Incentive Plan permits the granting of non-qualified and incentive stock
options and restricted stock grants, and reserves 80,000 shares of the Company's stock for issuance
thereunder.

The Incentive Plan is administered by a committee of the Board of Directors which is responsible for
designating employees to receive awards, the type and number of awards granted and establishing the terms
and conditions of the awards. Option awards are granted with an exercise price at least equal to the market
price of the Company's common stock at the date of grant; those option awards may have vesting periods
ranging up to ten years. The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using a closed form
option valuation (Black-Scholes) model.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN SHAREHOLDERS

The following table sets forth information concerning the number of shares of Common Stock bene-

ficially owned, directly or indirectly, as of December 31, 2014, by (i) each of the three highest paid persons
who were then officers and/or Directors of the Company, (ii) all executive officers and Directors of the
Company as a group, and (iii) each shareholder that owns more than 10% of the Company's Common Stock:

Name and Address of Number of Common Shares Percent of
Beneficial Owner Beneficially Owned (1) Class

Brenda L.Copeland (2) 15,320.127 . *
One Steuben Square
Hornell, New York 14843

James P.Nicoloff (3) 5,700.000 *
One Steuben Square
Hornell, New York 14843

Gregory J.Wood (4) 1,900.000 *
One Steuben Square
Hornell, New York 14843

David A. Shults (5) 246,478.617 14.8
9 Seneca Street
Hornell, New York 14843

All Directors andExecutive Officers 413,477.970 24.9
as a Group (19 persons, including those
named above)

* Indicates less than 1% of the Company's issued andoutstanding shares of Common Stock.

(1) The securities "beneficially owned" by an individual have been determined in accordance with the
definitions of "beneficial ownership," "affiliate" and"associate" as set forth in SEC Rules 13d-3 and 12b-2
under the Exchange Act and may include securities owned by or for the individual's spouse and minor
children and any other relative who has the same home, as well as securities as to which the individual hasor
shares voting or investment power or has the right to acquire beneficial ownership within sixty days after
December 31, 2014. Beneficial ownership may be disclaimed as to certain of the securities.

(2) Includes 14,689.108 shares owned directly by Ms. Copeland, of which 900.000 are shares in
underlying options exercisable on or after February 17,2014, and 900.000 exercisable on or after April 2,
2014, and 1,200.000shares exercisable after May 1, 2014, and 631.019 shares owned by Ms. Copeland's
spouse over which she hasvoting control asthe holder of a power-of-attorney.

(3) Includes 800.000shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17,2012.
Includes 600.000shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17,2013.
Includes 600.000shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17,2014.
Includes 800.000shares in underlying options exercisable on or after April 2,2013.
Includes 600.000shares in underlying options exercisable on or after April 2, 2014.
Includes 800.000shares in underlying options exercisable on or after May 1,2014.

(4) Includes 200.000shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17,2012
Includes 300.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17,2013.
Includes 300.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17,2014.
Includes 400.000shares in underlying options exercisable on or after April 2,2013.
Includes 300.000shares in underlying options exercisable on or after April 2,2014.
Includes 200.000shares in underlying options exercisable on or after May 1,2014.

(5) Includes (i) 81,228.580shares owned by Mr. D. Shults directly, (ii) 20,732.605shares owned by Mr.
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D. Shults' spouse, (iii) 144,517.132shares owned by members of Mr. D. Shults' family over which he has
voting control as the holder of a power-of-attorney.

The following table sets forth the shares awarded active officers under the Incentive Plan as of December 31,
2014:

Number of shares of
Name of Holder Common Stock Exercise Price Vesting Dates Shares Exercised

Brenda L. Copeland 1,200 $26.00 February 17,2012 1,200
900 February 17,2013 900
900 February 17,2014

1,200 $27.00 April 2, 2013 1,200
900 April 2, 2014
900 . April 2, 2015

1,200 $30.00 May 1,2014
900 May 1,2015
900 May 1,2016

James P.Nicoloff 800 $26.00 February 17,2012
600 February 17,2013
600 February 17,2014
800 $27.00 April 2, 2013
600 April 2, 2014
600 April 2, 2015
800 $30.00 May 1,2014
600 May 1, 2015
600 May 1,2016

Gregory J.Wood 400 $26.00 February 17,2012 200
300 February 17,2013
300 February 17,2014
400 $27.00 April 2, 2013
300 April 2, 2014
300 April 2, 2015
200 $30.00 May 1, 2014
200 May 1,2015
200 May 1,2016
200 May 1,2017
200 May 1, 2018

All Executive Offic- 3,200 $26.00 February 17,2012 1,400
ers as a Group (7 per- 2,400 February 17,2013 900
sons including those 2,400 February 17,2014
named above)
All Executive Offic- 3,400 $27.00 April 2, 2013 1,200
ers as a Group (7 per- 2,550 April 2, 2014
sons including those 2,550 . April 2, 2015
named above)
All Executive Offic- 3,320 $30.00 May 1,2014
ers as a Group (9 per- 2,570 May 1,2015
sons including those 2,570 May 1,2016
named above) 320 May 1,2017

320 May 1,2018
37
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CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

No consideration,monetary or otherwise (including any formal or informal agreement relating to the
payment of compensation in any form) has been given or offered to any shareholder, officer or Director of
the Company or the Bank, or to any member of the immediate family of any of suchpersons,in connection
with the shares offered hereby.

The Company's officers and Directors and members of their immediate families and businesses in
which these individuals may hold controlling interests are customers of the Bank and it is anticipated that
such parties will continue to be Bank customers in the future. Credit transactions with these parties are
subject to review by the Bank's Board of Directors and/or a Committee thereof. All outstanding loans and
extensions of credit by the Bank to these parties were made in the ordinary course of business on
substantially the same terms and conditions, including interest rates and collateral requirements, as those
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons and, in the opinion of management, did
not involve more than the normal risk of noncollectibility or present other unfavorable features.

LITIGATION

The Company is involved in legal proceedings in the normal course of business, none of which are
expected to have a material adverse impact on the financial condition or results of the operations of the
Company.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Company's principal executive offices are located at One Steuben Square, Hornell, New York,
telephone (607) 324-5010.

The Company has filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") a Regulation A
Offering Statement on Form 1-A under the Securities Act of 1933,as amended (the "Securities Act") relating
to the shares of Common Stock offered hereby ("Offering Statement"). This Offering Circular does not
contain all of the information set forth in the Offering Statement and the exhibits thereto, certain portions of
which have been omitted pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC.

The Offering Statement may be inspected and copied at prescribed rates at the public reference room
maintained by the .SEC at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Room 1024, Washington, D.C.20549. Copies of this
material may also be obtained at prescribed rates by writing to the SEC,Public Reference Section, 450 Fifth
Street, NW, Washington, D.C.20549.

NO PERSON HAS BEEN AUTHORIZED TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TO MAKE
ANY REPRESENTATION NOT CONTAINED IN THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR AND, IF GIVEN
OR MADE, SUCH INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATION MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON AS
HAVING BEEN AUTHORIZED BY THE COMPANY. NEITHER THE DELIVERY OF THIS
OFFERING CIRCULAR NOR ANY SALE MADE HEREUNDER SHALL, UNDER ANY
CIRCUMSTANCES, CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO CHANGE IN
THE BUSINESS AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY SINCE THE DATE OF THIS OFFERING
CIRCULAR. THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO SELL OR
A SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY IN
ANY JURISDICTION OR TO ANY PERSON TO WHOM IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE SUCH
OFFER.

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR CONTAINS ALL OF THE REPRESENTATIONS BY THE
COMPANY CONCERNING THIS OFFERING AND NO PERSON SHALL MAKE DIFFERENT OR
BROADER STATEMENTS THAN THOSE CONTAINED HEREIN. INVESTORS ARE
CAUTIONED NOT TO RELY UPON ANY INFORMATION NOT EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN
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THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR.

NOTICE TO RESIDENTS OF PENNSYLVANIA

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION ("COMPANY") COMMON SHAREHOLDERS WHO ARE
RESIDENTS OF PENNSYLVANIA ARE WELCOME TO ENROLL AND PARTICIPATE IN THE
COMPANY'S DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN ("PLAN"). THE
COMPANY IS CLAIMING AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IN PENNSYLVANIA
UNDER SECTION 203(n) OF THE PENNSYLVANIA SECURITIES ACT OF 1972.HOWEVER, TO
COMPLY WITH THE REGULATIONS OF THE PENNSYLVANIA SECURITIES COMMISSION,
PENNSYLVANIA RESIDENTS WHO PARTICIPATE IN THE PLAN ARE NOT PERMITTED TO
MAKE VOLUNTARY ADDITIONAL CASH PURCHASES OF THE COMPANY'S COMMON
SHARES UNDER THE PLAN.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR AND LEGAL PROVIDER

The consolidated financial statements of Steuben Trust Corporation and subsidiaries as of December
31, 2014, and 2013, and for the years then ended have been included herein in the Form 1-A Offering
Statement. The consolidated financial statements of Steuben Trust Corporation as of December 31,2014 and
2013, and the years then ended,have been audited by Crowe Horwath LLP, independent auditors.

Underberg & Kessler LLP, Rochester, New York, will issue a legal opinion concerning the validity
of the common stock being sold in this Offering.
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À CroweHorwath." Crowe Horwath LLP
Independent Member Crowe Horwath International

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Steuben Trust Corporation
Hornell, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Steuben Trust Corporation, which
comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessrnents, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Steuben Trust Corporation as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its
operations and .its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Crowe Horwath LLP

Cleveland, Ohio
February 12, 2015
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

December 31, 2014and 2013

(In thousands, except share amounts)

2014 2013

ASSETS

Cashand due from banks $ 10,374 13,913

Securities available-for-sale 165,678 154,452

Securities held-to-maturity (fair value $9,424 in 2014 and $7,161 in 2013) 9,302 7,031

Loans, net of allowance of $3,100 in 2014 and $2,860 in 2013 265,857 239,513

Premises and equipment, net 6,914 7,181

Accrued interest receivable 1,701 1,448

Intangible assets, net 88 95

Bank owned life insurance 9,042 8,791
Other real estate owned 1,591 666

Other assets 4,194 5,752

TOTAL ASSETS $ 474,741 438,842

LIABILITIES

Deposits

Non-interest bearing $ 97,434 83,314

Interest bearing 285,930 269,638

Total deposits 383,364 352,952

Subordinated debentures 2,062 2,062

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 38,500 38,000

Accrued interest payable 99 85

Other liabilities 4,941 3,383

Total liabilities $ 428,966 396,482

SHAREHOLDERS'EQUITY

Common stock - $1 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized,
1,738,372 shares issued in 2014,

1,728,385shares issued in 2013 $ 1,738 1,728

Additional paid-in capital 4,818 4,502

Retained earnings 41,339 38,188
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) 392 (131)

Treasury stock, at cost, 100,649 shares in 2014, 91,184 shares in 2013 (2,512) (2,234)

Total Steuben Trust Corporation Shareholders' Equity 45,775 42,053

Non-controlling interest $ - 307

Total equity $ 45,775 42,360

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 474,741 438,842

Seeaccompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of income

December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands, except share amounts)

2014 2013

INTEREST INCOME

Loans $ 12,056 11,723

Taxablesecurities 2,889 2,358

Tax Exempt securities 1,556 1,626

Total interest income 16,501 15,707

INTEREST EXPENSE

Savings and time deposits 699 640
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 330 349

Subordinated debentures 37 38

Total interest expense 1,066 1,027

Net interest income 15,435 14,680

Provision for loan losses 357 154

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 15,078 14,526

OTHER INCOME

Service charges 2,625 2,768

Trust and investment services income 1,097 967

Gain on sale of investments and other assets 375 353

Other 753 743

Total other income 4,850 4,831

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and employee benefits 7,813 7,617

Occupancy 857 826

Depreciation and amortization 477 496

Marketing and public relations 171 154

Office supplies, printing, postage and courier 430 402

Professionai fees 281 186

Furniture and equipment maintenance 627 556

Other operating 2,357 2,528

Total operating expenses 13,013 12,765

Income before income taxes 6,915 6,592
INCOME TAXES 2,000 1,840

NET INCOME $ 4,915 4,752

Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interest 46 28

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION $ 4,869 4,724

Basic Earnings Per Share $ 2.97 2.88
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 2.97 2.87

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

December 31, 2014 and 2013

(In thousands, except shareamounts)
2014 2013

Net Income $ 4,915 4,752

Other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gains/losses on securities:

Unrealized holding gain/(loss) arising during the period 3,091 (6,560)

Reclassification adjustment for (gains)/losses included in net income (197) -

Tax effect (1,120) 2,538

Net of tax 1,774 (4,022)

Defined benefit pension plans:

Net gain/(loss) arising during period (2,062) 1,947

Reclassification adjustment for amortization of prior service cost

and net gain/(loss) included in net periodic pension cost 21 225
Taxeffect 790 (840)

Net of tax (1,251) 1,332

Total other comprehensive income/(loss) 523 (2,690)

Comprehensive income $ 5,438 2,062

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

(in thousands, except share data and per share amounts)
Accumulated

Additional Other Non-

Common Pald-in Retained Comprehensive Treasury Controlling

stock Capital Earnings income (Loss) Stock Interest Total

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2012 $ 1,728 4,469 33,464 2,559 (1,811) 314 40,723

Net income - - 4,724 - - 28 4,752

Other comprehensive income - - - (2,690) - - (2,690)

Cash dividends paid:

$0.00 per Common share - - - - - (28) (28)

stock based compensation plan expense - 13 - - - - 13

stock options exercised, including tax benefit

1,400 Common shares - 11 - - 27 - 38

Non-controlling interest shares retired
14 Preferred shares - - - - - (7) (7)

Treasury shares purchased:
17,394Common shares - - - - (471) - (471)

stock sold:

1,110 Common shares - 9 - - 21 - 30

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2013 $ 1,728 4,502 38,188 (131) (2,234) 307 42,360

Net income - - 4,869 - - 46 4,915

Other comprehensive income - - - 523 - - 523

Cash dividends paid:

$1.05 per Common share - - (1,718) - - (46) (1,764)

stock based compensation plan expense - 8 - - - - 8

stock options exercised, including tax benefit
900 Common shares - 3 - - 20 - 23

Non-controlling interest shares retired

614 Preferred shares - - - - - (307) (307)

Treasury shares purchased:

10,365 Common shares - - - - (298) - (298)
Stock sold:

9,987 Common shares 10 305 - - - - 315

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2014 $ 1,738 4,818 41,339 392 (2,512) 0 45,775

see accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013

(In thousands)
2014 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income $ 4,915 4;752

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
. provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 477 496
Provision for loan losses 357 154

Subsequent write down of other real estate 21 134
Gain on sale of securities (197) -

Amortization/accretion on securities available for sale 891 944
Gain on sale of loans held for sale (178) (353)

(Gain) Loss on sale of other real estate (4) 10
Stock based compensation plan expense 8 13
Deferred income tax (income) expense (21) 118

Net principal disbursed on loans held for sale (6,417) (10,973)
Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale 6,595 11,326

Change in:
Accrued interest receivable (253) (2)
Other assets 83 (331)

Accrued interest payable 14 (12)
Other liabilities 379 543

Net cash provided by operating activities 6,670 6,819

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 5,788 -

Proceeds from maturities and redemptions of securities available for sale 6,623 5,341
Principal payments on securities available for sale 11,644 14,018
Purchases of securities available for sale (33,080) (46,573)

Purchases of securities held to maturity (8,603) (5,734)
Proceeds from maturities and redemptions of securities held to maturity 6,331 4,971

Loan originations and payments, net (27,752) 597
Proceeds from sale of other real estate 108 593

Capital expenditures (149) (107)
Net cash used in investing activities (39,090) (26,894)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net increase in deposits 30,412 22,918

Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances (37,000) (44,000)
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances 37,500 40,500

Common stock issued, dividend reinvestment plan 315 -

Treasury stock sold 23 68.

Treasury stock purchased (298) (471)

Retirement of non-controlling shares (307) (7),
Dividends paid (1,764) (28)

Net cash provided by financing activities 28,881 18,980

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,539) (1,095)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 13,913 15,008

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 10,374 13,913

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 2014 2013

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 1,052 1,039
Income taxes 1,650 1,902

Non-cash investing activities:
Transfer from loans to Other Real Estate Owned 1,051 212

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NotesToConsolidatedFinancialStatements

1. ORGANIZATION Loans

SteubenTrustCorporation (the com ny) is both a bank holding company Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the
and a financial holding company s ect to regulation by certain federal foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are reported at the
and state agencies,including the Fe ral Deposit InsuranceCorporation. principal balance outstanding, net of purchase premiums and
The Company,through its bank subsidiary, Steuben Trust Company.(the discounts, deferred loan fees and costs, and an allowance for loan
Bank),provides finanaal servicesto individuals and businessespnmanly in losses. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance.
Steuben,Allegany,Livingston,MonroeandWyomingcountiesinNewYork Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are
State.The Bankdissolved its subsidiary- Steuben RealEstate Holding, Inc (a deferred and recognized in interest income using the level yield
RealEstate InvestmentTrust "REIT")on December 5, 2014. All minonty method without anticipating prepayments.
shareholdersreceived their equity interests and all accrued and unpaid
dividends.The remaining assets were transferred back to the Bank. The Interest income on residential, commercial real estate (construction
Company also hasan investment in a subsidiary trust, Steuben Statutory and other) and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is
TrustIl that is not consolidated (note 15). 90 days delinquent unless the loan is well-secured and in process of

collection. Consumer loans including auto and other, are typically
2. SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES charged off no later than 120days past due.Pastdue status is basedon

foi-oe"Ebeth tnnasm n nh u n ao o
by the Company. loans hat are collectively evaluated for impairment and indÎvidually

classified impaired loans. A loan is moved to non-accrual status in
Principles of Consolidation accordance with the Company's policy, typically after 90 days of non-

The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the payment,
accounts ofthe Company and itswholly owned subsidiary,the Bank.All For all classes of loans,.interest accrued but not received for loans
rnaterial intercompany accountsand transactions have been eliminated placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest income. Interest
m consolidation. received on such loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost

recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are
Subsequent Events returned to accrual status when all the principal andinterest amounts

contractually due are brought current and future payments are
The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and reasonablyassured.
disclosure through February 12,2015, which is the date the financial
statements were availableto be issued.

Allowance for Loan Losses

UseofEstimates The allowance for loan losses is a valuation allowance for probable

Topere ayreficneaal tatheemenntsn nefsorrnitymweiacca antnmeprtinciaes tncu d rendit s .eTdhepconmaann ermens nfo{luoaat tchheargoeadn

aestrnaSteusanassu p otnhsebaaseduonavailanfnortratonnankelSÎtmmea arna enenLtoabnI seestahrechnacr a nst tha aon bnaceanwhe
andthe d s losuresprovided,and actuaÎesults could differ. confirmed. Subsequent recoveries,if any,are credited to the allowance.The allowance for loan lossesis maintained at anamount management

deems adequate to provide for probable incurred loan losses
Statement of CashFlows considering the character of the loan portfolio, economic conditions,
For rposesof reportin cash flows, cash and cashe ivalents include analysis of specific loans _and historical loss experience. While
cashpounhand,amounts due from banksand federal fundussold. Net cash management usesavailable information to recognize losseson loans,
flows are reported for customer loanand deposit transactions. future additions to the allowance may be necessarybased on changesin economic conditions. In addition, vanous regulatory agencies,as an

integral part of their examination process, periodically review the
Securities Company's allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the
The Com yclassifiesits debt securitiesaseither availablefor saleor held Company to recognize ad.ditions .to the allowance based on their
to matur Heldto maturity securitiesare those debt securities,carriedat Judgments about information available to them.at the time of their
amortize cost,that the Companyhasthe positive intent and the ability to examinations. Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific
hold until maturity. All other securitiesnot included in heldto maturity are loans, but the entire allowance is available for any loan that, in
classified as available for sale when the security might be sold before management's Judgment, should be charged off. The allowance
maturity.Securitiesavailablefor salearecarriedat fairvalue,with unrealized consistsof specmc and general components. Th.especific component
holding gains and lossesreported in other comprehensiveincome, net of relates to loans that are individually classified asimpaired.
tax. A loan is impaired when, based on current information and events, it is
Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due
("OTTr')on at leasta quarterly basis,and more frequently when economic according to the contractual terms of the l.oanagreement. Loans for
or market conditions warrant such an evaluation. For securities in an which the terms have been modified resultina in a concession,and for
unrealizedloss osition, management considersthe extent and duration of which the borrower isexpenenan financial difficulties, are considered

amortizedcost basis.Foreq.uitysecurities,ptheentireamount of impairment owe .
is recognized through earnings- Commercial and commercial real estate loans over $100,000 are

identified for impairment disclosures.
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NotesToConsolidatedFinancialStatements

2. SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued) Other RealEstate Owned

Troubled debt restructurings are separately identified for impairment Other realestate owned includes property acquired through, or in lieu of,
disclosuresand are measured at the present value of estimated future formal foreclosureare initially recorded at fair value lesscoststo sellwhen
cash flows usingthe loan's effective rate at inception. If a troubled debt acquired,which establishesa new cost basis.After transfer,the property
restructuring is considered to bea collateral dependent loan,the loan is iscarried at the lower of cost or fairvalue, lessestimated selling expenses,
reported, net, at the fair value of the collateral. For troubled debt If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure, a valuation allowance is
restructurings that subsequently default, the Company determines the recorded through expense. Operating costs after foreclosure are
amount of reserve in accordance with the accounting policy for the expensed.
allowance for loan losses.

The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on PremisesandEquipment
historical lossexperience adjusted for current factors. The historical loss Land is carried at cost. Premisesand equipment are stated at cost less
experience is determined by portfolio segment and is based on the accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed primarily on the
actual loss history experienced by the Company over the most recent straight-line method with useful lives generally ranging from 15 to 39
five years. This actual loss experience is supplemented with other yearsfor building and related components and 3 to 7 yearsfor furniture
economic factors based on the nskspresent for each portfolio segment. and equipment.
These economic factors include consideration of the following: levels
of and trends in delinquencies and impaired loans;levels of and trends Bank Owned Lifelnsurance
in charge-offs and recovenes; trends m volume and terms of loans;
effects of any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards; The Company haspurchased life insurance policies on certain directors
other changes in lending policies,procedures,and practices;experience, , and aformer executive officer. Bankowned life insurance is recorded at
ability, and depth of lending management and other relevant staff; the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the
national and local economic trends and conditions;industry conditions; balance sheet date, which is the cashsurrender value adjusted for other
and effects of changes in credit concentrations. charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement.

A description of each Segment of the loan portfolio, along with the risk Comprehensive income
characteristicsof eachsegment is included below:

Comprehensive income consistsof net income andother comprehensive
CommercialLoans- Commercial loans are made to businessesgenerally income. Other comprehensive income consists of the net unrealized
located within the primary market area. Those loans are generally holding gainsor lossesof securities availablefor sale,and changes in the
secured by business equipment, inventory, accounts receivable and funded status of the pension plan, net of the related tax effect.
other business assets. In underwriting commercial loans we consider
the net operating income of the company, the debt service ratio and Earnin sPer Share
the financial strength, expertise and credit history of the business 9
owners and/or guarantors. Becausepayments on commercial loansare Basicearnings per common share is net income available to Steuben
dependent on successful operation of the business enterprise, Trust Corporation common shareholders divided by the weighted
repayment of such loans may be subject to a reater extent to adverse average number of common shares outstanding during the period.
conditions in the economy. We seek to mit ate these risks through Diluted earnings.per common share includes the dilutive effect of
underwriting policies which require such I ans to be qualified at additional potential common shares issuableunder stock options.
origination on the basis of the enterprise's financial performance and . . .
the financial strength of the business owners and/or guarantors. The factors used .in computing earnings per share are as follows (inthousands except shareand per sharedata):
Commercial Real Estate Loans - We originate commercial real estate
loans that are securedbv properties used for business purposes,where 2014 2013
the primary source of repayment is derived from rental income Basic
associated with the prope .These properties include office buildings '
and retail facilities gener located within our primary market area. NetincomeattributabletoSteubenTrustCorporation$ 4,869 4,724
Underwriting policies provi e that commercial real estate loans are in
amounts lessthan the appraisedvalue of the property.in underwriting
commercial real estate loans, we consider the appraised value and net Weightedaveragecommonsharesoutstanding 1,636,909 1,642,617
operating income of the property, the debt service ratio and the
property owner's and/or guarantor's financial strength, expertise and
credit history. Becausepayments on loans secured by commercial real Basiceamingspercommonshare $ 2.97 2.88
estate properties are dependent on successful operation or
management of the properties, repayment of commercial real estate
loans may be subject to a greater extent to adverse conditions in the
real estate market or the economy. Diluted:

Residential Real Estate Loans - Mortgage loans include residential NetincomeattributabletoSteubenTrustCorporationS 4,869 4,724
mortgages and home equity loans secured by one to four family
residences located.within our primary market area. Credit approval for
residential realestate loansrequires demonstration of sufficient income Weightedaveragecommonsharesoutstanding
to repay the principal and interest and the real estate taxes and forbasiceamingspercommonshare 1,636,909 1,642,617
insurance, stability of employment and an established credit record.
Loans in excessof 80% of the appraised value of the property securing Add:Dilutiveeffectsofstockoptions 1,889 1,179-
the loan require private rnortgage insurance. The Company does not Averagesharesanddilutivepotentialengage in subpnme lending.

commonshares 1,638,798 1,643,796
ConsumerLoans-We originate consumer loans including auto loansto
consumers in our primary market area. Credit approval for other
consumer loans requires income sufficient to repay pnncipal and Dilutedeamingspershare $ 2.97 2.87
interest due,stability of employment, an established credit record and
sufficient collateral for secured loans. Consumer loans typically will
have shorter terms and lower balanceswith higher vields ascompared Therewere no stock options for sharesof common stock that were not
to realestate loans,but generally carry higher risksof default. Consumer consideredin computing diluted earnings per sharefor 2014becausethey
loan collections are dependent on the borrower's continuing financial were antidilutive. Therewere 9,100stock options at December31, 2013
stability, and thus are more likely to be affected by adverse personal that were antidilutive.circumstances.
Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales,when control
over the assetshasbeen relinquished. Control over transferred assets is
deemed to besurrendered when the assets havebeen isolated from the
Company, the transferee obtains the rights (free of conditions that
constrain it taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the
transferred assets,and the Companydoes not maintain effective control
over the transferred assets, and the Company does not maintain
effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to
repurchase them before maturity. Page 51of 77
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NotesToConsolidatedFinancialStatements

2. SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

Income Taxes Long-term Assets

x a9seand I es re ecog z d r the es i t fu ure taxr
consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their LossContingencies
respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the
using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary ordinary course of business, are recorded as liabilities when the
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized reasonably estimated. Management does not believe there now are
in income in the period which includes the enactment date.A valuation suchmatters that will have a material effect on the financial statements.
allowance, if needed, reduces deferred tax assets to the amount
expected to be realized. Fair Value of Financial instruments

A tax position is recognized asa benefit only if it is"more likely than not" Fairvaluesof financial instruments are estimated using relevant market
that the tax position would besustained in atax examination, with a tax information and other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in a
examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the separatenote.Fairvalue estimates involve uncertainties and matters of
largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being significant judgment regarding interest rates,credit risk, prepayments,
realizedonexamination. Fortaxpositionsnotmeetingthe"morelikely and other factors, especially in the absence of broad markets for
than not" test, no tax benefit is recorded. The Company recognizes particular items. Changes in assumptions or in market conditions
interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax could significantly affect these estimates.

expense. Reclassifications

Retirement Plans Some items in the prior year financial statements were reclassified to

The Banksponsors a non contributory defined benefit retirement plan conform to the current presentation. Reclassificationshad noaffect on
for full-time employees who have attained the age of 21 and have a prior year net income or shareholders'equity.
minimum of oneyear of service.New employees hired on or after March Operating Segments
1,2009 are excluded from participation in the plan.The plan was frozen
and curtailed to new benefit accruals asof December 31,2012.Pension While the chief decision-makers monitor the revenue streams of the
expenseis the net of serviceand interest cost, return on plan assetsand various products and services, operations are managed and financial
amortization of gains and losses not immediately recognized. Accrued performance is evaluated on a Corporation-wide basis, and operating
pension costs are funded to the extent deductible for federal income segments are aggregated into one asoperating resultsfor all segments
tax purposes. are similar. Accordingly, all of the financial service operations are

considered by management to be aggregated in one reportable
The Bank also provides a savings and retirement 401(k) plan for all operating segment.
eligible employees who elect to participate. For the 2010 plan year, the
Bank adopted a provision which provides a "safe harbor" matching
contribution equal to 100% of the first 3% of compensation deferred, Adoption of New Accounting Standards and Newly issued Not
plus 50% of the next 2% of compensation deferred up to a maximum of Yet Effective Accounting Standards.
4%. Employer contributions are funded as they are accrued. There is
also adiscretionary contribution that maybe paid to eligible employees. In January 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
This is subject to approval by the board of directors annually• an accounting standards update clarifying guidance for in substance

repossessionsand foreclosures, and requiring additional disclosures
Stock-Based Compensation regarding foreclosed residential real estate property and recorded

Compensation cost is recognized for stock options issuedto employees, investments in consumer mortgage loans collateralized by residential
based on the fair value of these awards at the date of grant.A Black- real estate in the processof foreclosure. This standard will be effective
Scholes model is utilized to estimate the fair value of stock options, for companies for interim and annual periods beginning after

December 15, 2014. The Corporation will adopt this new guidance

genmeal y dt necdasttherecotn peedriodIr trhaewdsu dh dkckpee as required, and it is not expected to have a material impact on the
compensation cost is recognized on a straight-line basis over the Corporation's Consolidated Financial Statements.
requisite service period for the entire award.

Also, in May2014the Financial Accounting Standards Board amended
Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments existing guidance related to revenue from contracts with customers.

Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments, This amendment supersedes and replaces nearly all existing -
such as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit, revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance,
issued to meet customer-financing needs.The face amount for these establishes a new control based revenue recognition model, changes
items represents the exposure to loss, before considering customer the basis for deciding when revenue is recognized over time or at a
collateral or ability to repay. Such financial instruments are recorded point in time, provides new and more detailed guidance on specific
when they are funded. topics and expands and improves disclosures about revenue. In

addition, this amendment specifies the accounting for some costs
Loans Held for Sale to obtain or fulfill a contract with a customer. These amendments

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary are effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December
market are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value, as 15,2014 including interim periods within that reporting period. The
determined by outstanding commitments from investors. Net company is currently evaluating the impact of this new accounting
unrealized losses, if any, are recorded as a valuation allowance and standard on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
charged to earnings. Mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold
with servicing rights retained. Gainsand losseson sales of mortgage
loans are based on the difference between the selling price and the
carrying value of the related loan sold.
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3. SECURITIES

The following table summarizesthe amortized cost and fair value ofthe Securitieswith unrealized lossesat December 31, 2014 and 2013, not
available-for-sale securities and held-to-maturity investment securities recognized in income, are asfollows (in thousands):
portfolio at December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the corresponding
amounts of gross unrealizedgainsand lossesrecognized in accumulated 2014 2013
other comprehensive income (loss) for securities available for sale (in
thousands): Fair Umtalized Fair Umtalized

AmortizedUnrealizedUnrealizedFair lossForlessThan12Months Value losses Value losses
2014 Cost Gains Losses Value

Available40rsale Available-forsale

UnitedStatesAgencysecurities $ 43,035 1,900 195 44,740 UnitedstatesAgencysecurities $ - -. 13,939 651

5tateandmunicipalsecurities 43,972 1,253 109 45,116 5tateandmunicipalsecurities 771 4 10,164 485

US.AgencyMortgage-backedsecurities-residential71,553 1,450 355 72,648 U.5,AgencyMortgage-backedsecurities-residential5,63 28 29,419 941

US.CorporateBonds 3,134 42 2 3,174 U.S.CorporateBonds 1,105 2
Totalavailablefor-sale $ 7,499 34 53,522 2,077

Totalsecuritiesavailabledor-sale $ 161,694 4,645 661 165,678

Fair Umtalized Fair Unrealized
Held-to-maturity lossFor12Months0rMore Value losses Value losses

5tateandmunicipalsectirities $ 9,392 122 - 9,424

Available-for-sale

Totalsecuritiesheld-to-maturity $ 9,302 122 - 9,424 UnitedStatesAgencysecurities $ 11,207 195
5tateandmunicipalsecurities . 7,366 105 4,748 314

AmortizedUnrealizedUnrealizedFair USAgencyMortgagebackedsecurities-residential18,197 327 5,971 313
2013 Cost Gains Losses Value USCorporateBonds

Available40r-sale Totalavailable-forsale $ 36,770 627 10,719 627

UnitedStatesAgencysecurities $ 41,241 1,460 651 42,050
5tateandmunicipalsecurities 47,314 1,271 799 47,786 Fair UnrealizedFair Unrealized
US.AgencyMortgage-backedsecuritiesresidential63,787 1,039 1,254 63,572 Total Value losses Value losses

US.CorporateBonds 1,020 24 - 1,044 Availabie4orsale

UnitedStatesAgencysecurities $ 11,207 195 13,939 651
Totalsecuritlesavailablefor-sale $ 153,362 3,794 2,704154,452 5tateandmunicipalsecurities 8,137 109 14,912 799

US.AgencyMortgage·backedsecurities-residential23,820 355 35,390 1,254
Held-to-maturity U.S.CorporateBonds 1,105 2

5tateandmunicipalsecurities $ 7,031 130 - 7,161 Totalavailablefor-sale $ 44,269 661 64,241 2,704

Totalsecuritiesheld-to-maturity $ 7,031 130 - 7,161 Unrealized losses on the above securities have not been recognized
into income becausethe issuersareof high credit quality, management

Salesofavailablefor-salesecuritieswereasfallows(inthousands): does not intend to sell and it is unlikely that management will be
required to sell the securities prior to their anticipated recovery, and
the decline in fair value is largely due to fluctuations in interest rates.

2014 2013 The fair value is expected to recover as the securities approach their
maturity date and /or market rates adjust favorably.

Proceeds $ 5,788 - The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities are shown by
Grossgains 197 - contractual maturity asof December31, 2014 (in thousands):
Grossiosses

Amortized Fair
Ihetaxprovisionrelatedtothesenetrealizedgainswas$76,000for2014comparedtononefor2013 Cost Value

Available-for-sale

Dueinoneyearor less $ 5,444 5,512
Dueafteroneyearthroughfiveyears 34,396 35,436
Dueafterfiveyearsthroughtenyears 58,300 60,506
Dueaftertenyears 63,554 64,224

Totalavailable-for-sale $ 161,694 165,678

Held-to-maturity

Dueinoneyearor less $ 7,673 7,698
Dueafteroneyearthroughfiveyears 1,575 1,666
Dueafterfiveyearsthroughtenyears 54 60
Dueaftertenyears

Totalheld-to-maturity $ 9,302 9,424
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3. SECURITIES(continued)

AtDecember31,2014and2013,securitieswithafairvalueof$156,340,000 The following table presents the balance in the allowance for loan
and $151,036,000 respectively, were pledged to securegovernmental lossesand the recorded investment in loans by portfolio segment and
deposits, FederalHome Loan Bankadvancesand for other purposes as based on impairment method as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in
required or permitted by law, thousands): CommerdalResidential

Rel Real

4. LOANS 2014 Commercial state state consumerUnallocatedTotal

Allowanceforloanloses

The following is a summary of loans outstanding at year-end (in Endingailowancebalanceattributabletoloans:

thousands): lndividuallysaiuatedforimpairment$ 88 - - - - 88

2014 2013 Collectivelyevaluatedforimpairment 1,058 1,433 132 179 210 3,012

Totalendingallowancebalance$ 1,146 1,433 132 179 210 3,100

Residentialmortgagesandhomeequityloans $ 76,923 81,549
Commercialloans 96,501 89,010 individuallyevaluatedhimpairment5 295 - - - - 295

Commercialrealestateloans 77,963 56,100 collectivelyevaluatedhimpainent %,187 n,¾3 . n,362 17,150. - 268g2

Consumerloans 17,050 15,257 Totalendingleanbalance $ %,482 77,%3 77,362 17,150 - 268,957
Total 268,437 241,916

Netuneamedloanoriginationfeesandcosts 520 457 Coninadal Regens
Real Real

2013 Commerdal Btate btate ConsumerUnallocatedTotal

Totalloans $ 268,957 242,373 Alowanceforloanloses:

Endingallowancebalancesitributabletoloans:

lndividuallyevaluatedforimpairment$ - 274 - - · 274

The recorded investment in loans includes principal outstanding collectivelyevaluatedforimpairment 1,243 837 137 128 191 2,586
adjusted for net unearned loan origination fees and cost, net loan

premiums and discounts and losson any loan charge-offs. The recorded Totalendingallowancebalance$ 1,243 1,111 187 128 191 2,860investment in loansdoes not include accrued interest receivable, asthe
effect is not considered to be material. Commercial real estate loans

are defined as loans secured by real estate for which rental income on individuallyevaluatedhimpairmentS 167 1,148 - - - 1,315
the collateral property is the primary source of repayment of the loan. collecevelyevaluatedhimpairment 88,828 54,952 31,90 15,335 - 241,oss

The Company's market area is generally Steuben, Allegany, Livingston, Totalendingloanbalance $ 88,995 54100 81,943 15,335 - 242373

Monroe and Wyoming Counties in New York State. Most of its loans
are made in its market area and, accordingly, the ultimate The following table presents loansevaluated for impairment by class
collectibility of the Company's loan portfolio is susceptible to changes of loansas of December 31,2014 and 2013 (in thousands):
in market conditions in this area.

Unpaid Allowansfor Arsap Intenst (alblasis

The Company's concentration of credit risk is shown in the above MacipalRearded Loaalous Remnled Income Intest

schedule of loans outstanding. The concentration of off-balance 2014 Balan lustment Alloaled Instment isopind Recopiral
sheet credit risk in commercial letters of credit and mortgage, merelatedallownemorded:
commercial and auto loans commitments is similar to the loans (emmerel 5 - - - 98
outstanding above. Management is not aware of any material (ammsellealistate

concentrations of credit risk to any industry or individual borrower. (enstuon

The following is a summaryof changesin the allowance for loanlossesby ReidentidRealistate

portfolio segmentasof December31,2014and 2013(in thousands): manallownerecorded:

CommercialResidential (ammscial 295 295 88 90 7 7

Real Real (ommeraallealEstate(enstution · - 922
2014 CommercialEstate Estate ConsumerUnallocatedTotal

Allowanceforloanlesses: RaidentiallealEslate

Beginningbalance . $ 1,243 1,111. 187 128 191 2,860
Provisionforloanlosses (99) 318 (40) 159 19 357 Total $ 295 295 86 1,110 7 7 *
Loanchargeolls (11) (20) (15) (155) - (201)
Recoveries 13 24 - 47 · 84 Unpld allowamforavsage Intest (aslilasis

Macipi Reconledinninses Rouled Inmale laiset

Totalendingallowancebalance$ 1,146 1,433 132 179 210 3,100 m3 lalan lustment Alivated lustment isopired Recopindmorelatedallownemorded:

(emmerdal $ 167 167 - 52
(ommerciallealEstate

CommercialResidential (ensinin

Real Real Giller

2013 CommercialEstate Estate ConsumerUnallocatedTotal RaidentialRealEslate

Allowanceforloanlosses: manallownerecorded:

Beginningbalance $ 1,274 852 153 223 373 2,875 (emmsel
Provisionforloanlosses (16) 367 46 (61) (182) 154 (ammaaillee

I.oanchargeoffs (34) (116) (12) (97) - (259) Olher 1,148 1,148 274 1218
Recoveries 19 8 - 63 - 99 ReidealidRealEslate

Totalendingallowancebalance$ 1,243 1,111 187 128 191 2,860 lolal $ 1315 1415 274 1,270
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4. LOANS(continued) Troubled Debt Restructurings:

Nonaccrual loans and loans pastdue 90daysand over and still accruing The Company hasnot identified any troubled debt restructurings as of
include both smaller balance homogenous loans that are collectively December 31,2014 and 2013.
evaluated for impairment and individually classified impaired loans.

Credit Quality Indicators:
The following table presents the recorded investment in nonaccrual The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant
and loanspast due 90daysand over and still onaccrual by classof loans information about the ability of borrowers to service their debt such
as of December 31,2014 and 2013 (in thousands): as: current financial information, historical payment experience, credit

documentation, public information and current economic trends,
amona other factors. The Company analyzes loans individually by

2014 2013 classifying the loans asto credit nsk. This analysis includes loans with
LoansPastDue loanSPastDue an outstanding balancegreater than $100,000, and non-homogeneous

loans, such as commeraal and commercial real estate loans. This
90Dapandoverand SODaysandoverand analysis is performed on a quarterly basis. The Company uses the

StilAmiing NonamialTotal Stilamág NonacaualTotal following d finitions for riskratings.
(0mmercial $ - 336 336 $ - 22 22

Special Mention - Loansclassifiedasspecialmentionhavea potential
(OmmerdalRealBtate: weaknessthat deservesmanagement'scloseattention. If left

Constrittlo uncorrectedthesepotentialweaknessesmayresult indeterioration of
therepaymentprospectsforthe loanorofthe institution'scredit

Ollier · · · · 1,1481,148 positionat somefuture date.

(Orisilmet Substandard - Loansclassifiedassubstandard areinadequately
Allt04rect - 28 28 - 9 9 protected bvthe currentnetworth andpayingcapacityof the

obligoror of thecollateralpledged,ifany.Loanssoclassified
Atitoindirect - - - · 12 12 haveawell-defined weaknessorweaknessesthatjeopardizethe

liquidation of the debt.Theyare characterized b the distinct
Otilei - - · · 9 9 possibilitythatthe institution willsustainsomelyossif the

ResidentialRealotate124 242 366 191 120 311 deficiencies arenot corrected.
Doubtful - Loansclassifiedasdoubtful haveall theweaknesses
inherentinthoseclassifiedassubstandard,with the added

Total $ 124 líQ6 730 $191 1,3201,511 characteristicthat theweaknessesmakecollectionor liquidation
in full, on the basisofcurrently existing facts,conditions,and
values,highlyquestionableandimprobable.

The following table presents the aging of the recorded investment in Loans not meeting the criteria above that are analyzed individually as
past due loans as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 by classof loans (in part of the above described process are considered to be pass rated
thousands): loans. Loans listed as not rated are either lessthan $100,000 or are

30-59 60-89 Greaterthan included in groups of homogeneous loans.Loans categorized as"not
Days Days 89days Total LoansNot rated" are evaluated based on delinquency which is previously

2014 PastDuePastDuePastDue PastDue PastDue Total presented. Asof December 31,2014 and 2013,and based on the most
recent analysis performed, the risk category of loans by classof loans is

Commeraal $ 954 47 289 1,290 95,192 96,482 asfollows (in thousands):
CommercialRealEstate:

Construction Not Spedal Sub-
Other 55 - - 55 77,908 77,963 2014 Rated Pass MentionstandardDoubtful Total

Consumether 82 11 22 115 8,902 9,017 Commercial $ - 94,271 650 1,422 139 96,482
Auto-direct 30 - 3 33 4,635 4,668 CommeraalRealEstate:
Auto-indirect 32 3 - 35 3,430 3,465 Construction

ResidentialRealEstate 516 76 331 923 76,439 77,362 Other - 77,669 221 73 - 77,963
Consumer 17,150 - - - - 17,150

Total $ 1,669 137 645 2,451 266,506 268,957 ResidentialRealEstate 77,362 - - - - 77,362

3 59 6D Greaterthan Total LoansNot Total $ 94,512 171,940 871 1,495 139 268,957
2013 PastDue PastDue PastDue PastDue PastDue Total

Commercial $ 556 146 - 702 88,293 88,995 Not Special Sub.
CommercialRealEstate: 2013 Rated Pass MentionstandardDoubtful Total

Construction - - - - 3,276 3,276 Commercial $ - 84,953 2,507 1,535 - 88,995 *
Other 80 - 1,148 1,228 51,596 52,824 CommercialRealEstate:

Consumer: Construction - 3,276 . - - - 3,276
Other 82 18 9 109 7,566 7,675 Other - 51,379 297 1,148 - 52,824
Auto-direct 32 - - 32 4,719 4,751 Consumer 15,335 - - - - 15,335
Auto-indirect 38 1 - 39 2,870 2,909 ResidentialRealEstate 81,943 - 81,943

ResidentialRealEstate 767 198 265 1,230 80,713 81,943

Total $ 1,555 363 1,422 3,340 239,033 242,373 Total $ 97,278 139,608 2,804 2,683 - 242,373
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5. FAIRVALUE

Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized
or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in the principal or most below (in thousands):
advantageous market for the assetór liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants on the measurement date. There are FairValueMeasurementsat

three levels of inputs that may be used to measurefair values: December31,2014Using:
Level 1: Quoted rices (unad sted) for identical assetsor liabilities in QuotedPrkes
active markets t at the ent y has the ability to access as of the
measurement date. inActive Significant

Marketsfor Other Significant
Level 2: Significant other o.bservableinputs other than Level 1 prices identical Observable Unobservable
such as oted prices for similar assets or liabilities, uoted nces in
markets at are not active, or other inputs that are o serva e or can Canying Assets Inputs Inputs
becorroborated by observable market data. FinancialAssets Yalut flatill llenl21 flatill

Level3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a reporting entity's Securities-availableforsale
own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants UnitedstatesAgengsecurities $ . 44,740 - 44,740
would use in pricing an assetor liability- 5tateandmunicipalsecurities 45,116 · 45,116

The Company used the following methods and significant assumptions USAgengmortgagebackedsecurities-residential72,648 - 72,648
to estimate fair value: U1CorporateBonds 3,174 · 3,174

Investment Securities Totalinvestmentsecuritiesavailable-for-sale$ 165,678 - 165,678
The fair values for investment securities are determined by quoted
market prices, if available (Level 1).For securities where quoted prices
are not available, fair values are calculated based on market prices of
similar securities (Level2). FairValueMeasurementsat

December31,2013Using:
Impaired Loans QuotedPrkes

The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations of the inActive Signilicant
allowance for loan losses is generally based on recent real estate Marketsfor Other Significant
appraisal.Theseappraisals may utilize a single valuation approach or a Identical Obsernble Unobservable

combination of approaches including comparable salesand the income Carrying Assets inputs Inputs
approach. Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by FinancialAssets Xalui ligelli aanl21 lintLil
the appraisersto adjust for differences between the comparable sales
and income data available. Such adjustments are typically significant 5ecuritiesavailableforsale
and result in a Level3 classification of the inputs for determining fair UnitedStatesAgencysecurities $ 42,050 - 42,050
value. Non-real estate collateral may be valued using an appraisal, net 5tateandmunicipalsecurities 47,786 - 47,786

book value per the borrower's financial statements, or aging reports, USAgentymortgage·backedsecurities-residential63,572 - 63,572
adjusted or discounted based on management's historical knowledge' USCorporateBonds 1,044 - 1,044changes in market .conditions from the time of the valuation, and
management's expertise and knowledge of the client and client's
business,resulting in Level3fair value classification.impaired loans are Totalinvestmentsecuritiesanilable-for-sale$ 154,452 - 154,452
evaluated on a quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted
accordingly. Therewereno transfersbetweenLevel1andLevel2during 2014or 2013.

Other Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through or instead of loan foreclosure are initially
recorded at fair value less costs to sell when acquired, establishing a
new cost basis.Theseassetsare subsequently accounted for at lower of
cost or fair value less estimated costs to sell.Fair value is commonly
based on recent real estate appraisals.These appraisals may utilize a
single valuation approach or a combination of approaches including
comparable salesand the income approach. Adjustments are routinely
made in the appraisal processby the independent appraisersto adjust
for differences between the comparable sales and income data
available.Such adjustments are usually significant and typically result
in a Level3 classification of the inputs for determining fair value.Real
estate owned properties are evaluated on a quarterly basis for
additional impairment and adjusted accordingly.

Appraisals for collateral-dependent impaired loans and real estate
owned are performed by certified general appraisers whose
qualifications and licenses have been reviewed and verified by the
Company. Once received, it is reviewed by one of the company's
appraisal reviewers. The assumptions and approaches utilized in the
appraisal as well asthe overall resulting fair value in comparison with
independent data sourcessuch asrecent market data or industry-wide
statistics are reviewed. On anannual basis,the Company comparesthe
actual selling price of collateral that has been sold to the most recent
appraised value to determine what additional adjustment should be
made to the appraisal value to arrive at fair value.
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5. FAIR VALUE (continued)

Assets measuredat fair valueon a nonrecurringbasisaresummarizedbelow The following table presents quantitative information about level 3 fair
(in thousands): value measurementsfor assetsmeasuredat fair value ona non-recurring

basisat December31,2014 and 2013 (amounts inthousands):

FairValueMeasurementsat Range
December31,2914Using: Valuation (Weighied

QuotedPrices December31,2014FairValueTechniques UnobieliableinputsAverage)

inActive Signiflcant Impairedleans:
Marketsfor Other Significant Commesial $ 297 8alescompalisonapproachAdjustmentfordifferences16.1%
Identical Observable Unobservable betweencomparadesales

CarryingAssets Inputs Inputs Realestateowned:
Value (Levell) (level2) (Level3) Commercial 79 8alescomparisonapproachEstimateofvaluefromreal

impairedloans: estatebroker 6.0%
Commercial $ 207 - - 207

0therrealestateowned,net: CommercialRealEstate1,521 IncomeapproachCapitailradonrate 9.6%
Commercial 79 - - 79

CommercialRealEstate1,521 - - 1,521

Range
FairValueMeasurementsat Valuation (Weighted

December31,2013Using: December31,2613FairValueTechniques UnobservableliputsAverage)
QuotedPrices Impairedloans:

inActive Significant CommeKiairealestate$ 874 IncomeapproachCapitalizationrate 8.5%
Marketsfor Other Significant
ldatical Observable Unobservable Realestateowned:

CarryingAssets Inputs Inputs Commesial 91 SalescompalisonapproachEstimateofvaluefromreal6.0%
Value (Levell) (Level2) (Level3) estatebroker

impairedloans:

CommesialRealEstate$ 874 - - 874 CommegialRealEstate470 IncomeapproachCapitaliradonrate 11.0%
0therrealestateowned,net:

Commercial 91 - - 91

CommercialRealEstate470 - - 470 Residendal 105 8aescomparisonapproachEsämateofvaluefromreal6.0%
ResidentialRealEstate105 - · 105 estatebroker

Page 57 of 77
F-14



NotesToConsolidatedFinancialStatements

5. FAIRVALUE(continued)

The following represent impairment charges recognized during the The estimated fair value approximates carrying amount for all items
period: except those described below. Estimated fair value for securities is

im aired loans, which are measured for im airment using the fair based on quoted market values for the individual securities or for
va ue of the collateral for collateral dependepntloans, had a carrying equivalent securities.
amount of $295,000,with avaluation allowance of $88,000at December Loans: The fair value is estimated using an internally generated cash
31,2014,resultinginnoadditionalprovisionforloanlossesatDecember flow, consisting of beginning known or estimated maturities, known
31,2014. At December31,2013, impaired loanshad a carryir 9arnount or estimated principal payments, and assumed prepayments. Each

8,0006 h a a uat n a n 2h n,0d1n0re uke9 3 n onth's a Kflouw isrthenbdrSfc unatLdetothpecuerrnt mearketeonrtdiscon9t
a prior period rate for the sameloan category. The sum of the valuesfor each perod is

aggregated to produce avalue for the position as awhole.
Other real estate owned which is measured at the lower of carry g or
fair value lesscosts to sell, had a net carrying amount of $1,59 000, Time Deposits: The fair value is estimated using internally generated

vwaahti nmaÎldewaunpceoth$e2 Ou0aonadtmSecbeeÎ301,$21dr0e00ultnet ,9 cash flows, consisting of beginning known or estimated maturities,
write-down of $21,000 for the year endin December 31, 201S At known or estimated principal payments,and usually a small assumed
December 31,2013,other realestate owne ada net carrying amount early withdrawal. Each month's cash flow is then discounted to that
of $666,000,which is made up of the outstanding balance of 5946,000, month's current market or discount rate modified by a constant spread,
net of a valuation allowance of $280,000,resulting in a write-down of The current market ratevariesby month, and is basedon the LIBOR/swap
$134,000for the year ending December 31, 2013. curve. The sumof the valuesfor each period is aggregated to produce a

valuefor the position asa whole.
The carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial instruments
at December 31, 2014 and 2013 were as follows (in thousands): Borrowings: The fair valuesof the Company's FederalHome Loan Bank

advancesareestimated using discounted cashflow analyses based on the
FairValueMeasurementsat current borrowings for similar types of borrowing arrangementsresulting

Carrying December31,2014Using: in a Level2 classification. The fairvalues of the Company'ssubordinated
debentures are estimated using discounted cash flow analysesbased on

Amount levell level2 Level3 Total the current borrowing ratesfor similar types of borrowing arrangements
Financialassels resultingin a Level2classification.

Cashandduefrombanks $ 10,374 10,374 - - 10,374
Accrued Interest Receivable/Payable: The carrying amount of

Securitiesavailabafosale165,678 - 165,678 - 165,678 accrued interest approximate fair value resulting in a Level 2 or Level3
5ecuritiesheldtomaturity9,302 - 9,424 - 9,424 classification,is consistentwith the classification of the assetor liability
Netloans . 265,857 - - 267,508 267,508 they areassociatedwith.

Accuedinterestreceivable1,701 - 995 706 1,701 Off-balance Sheet Instruments: Fairvalues for off-balance sheet,credit-
relatedfinancial instruments arebased on feescurrently charged to enter

Financialliabilities into similar agreements,taking into account the remaining term of the

Demandandsavingsdeposits(245,661)(245,661) - - (245,661) m tm ntaSdnthtemcou rparties' credit standing. The fair value of
Timedeposits (137,703) - (137,798) - (137,798)
AdvancesfromFHL8 (38,500) - (38,536) - (38,530) 6. OTHERREALESTATEOWNED
5ubordinateddebentures(2,062) - (1,652) - (1,652) Other real estate owned at December 31,2014 and 2013 was asfollows

Accruedinterestpayable (99) - (99) - (99) (in thousands):

2014 2013
FaltValueMeasurementsal

Canying December31,2013llsing: Otherrealestateowned $ 1,852 946
Amount Level1 Level2 Level3 Total Valuationallowance (261) (280)

Financialassels
Netotherrealestateowned $ 1,591 666

Cashandduefrombanks $ 13,913 13,913 - - 13,913

5ecuritiesavailable-foMale154,452 - 154,452 - 154,452

Securitiesheldtomaturity 7,031 - 7,161 - 7,161 Activityinthevaluationallowancewasasfollows(inthousands):

Netloans 239,513 - - 240,201 240,201 2014 2013

Accruedinterestreceivable1,448 · 960 488 1,448 BeginningofYear $ 280 237
Additionschargedto expense 21 134

Financialliabilities Directwrite-downs (40) (91)

Demandandsavingsdeposits(228,048)(228048) - - (228,048)
Timedeposits (124,904) - (125,134) - (125,134) EndofYear $ 261 280

AdvancesfromFHL8 (38,000) - (38,132) - (38,132)

Subordinateddebentures (2,062) - (1,672) - (1,672) Expensesrelatedto foreclosedassetsinclude(inthousands):
Accruedinterestpayable (85) · (85) · (85) 2014 2013

Netloss/(gain)onsales $ (4) 10
Provisionforunrealizedlosses 21 134

Operatingexpenses,netofrentalincome 8 70

EndofYear $ 25 214
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7. PREMISESAND EQUIPMENT

Premisesand equipment at December 31,2014 and 2013 consist of the The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant
following (in thousands): Portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at

2014 2013 December 31,2014 and 2013 are presented below (in thousands):

Land $ 2,151 2,151 2014 2013

Bank premises 7,764 7,753 Deferredtaxassets
Furniture and equipment 6,742 6,604 Allowancefor loanlosses $ 1,038 980

Cost basis 16,657 16,508 DeferredCompensation 1,079 1,007
Accumulated depreciation 9,743 9,327 PensionPlan 1,294 505

Other 179 264

Net $ 6,914 7,181 Totalgrossdeferredtaxassets 3,590 2,756

Depreciation expense was $416,000 and $423,000 for 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Deferredtax liabilities

Depreciation 144 144

Operating Leases Netunrealizedgainonsecuritiesavailableforsale 1,541 422

The Company leasescertain branch properties and equipment under Prepaidpensionexpenses 804 809

operation leases.Rentexpensewas $223,000for 2014 and $228,000for Other 270 241
2013. Rent commitments, before considering renewal options that Totalgrossdeferredtaxilabilities 2,759 1,616
generally are present,were asfollows (in thousands):

Netdeferredtaxasset/ (llability) $ 831 1,140

Year Arnount

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation
of future taxable income or the existence of sufñcient taxable income

2015 $ 214 within the carryback period. Avaluation allowanceis provided when
2016 194 it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets
2017 166 Will not be realized. In assessingthe need for a valuation allowance,
2018 127 management considers the scheduled reversal of the deferred tax

liabilities, the level of historical taxable income and projected future
2019 49 taxable income over the periods in which the temporary differences
Thereafter 142 comprising the deferred tax assetswill be deductible. Based on its
Total $ 892 assessment,management determined that no valuation allowance is

necessary.

At December 31, 2014 and 2013 the Company had no uniecognized
8. GOODWILLAND INTANGIBLEASSETS tax benefits. The Company does not expect the amount of .
The Company acquired Canisteo Savings and Loan Association unrecognized tax benefits to increas.esignificantly within the next
(Canisteo)on February20, 2009. Asa result of this acquisition, goodwill twelve months. Therewere no penalties or interest related to income
of $64,000 was recorded by the Cornpany. An annual impa.irment taxes recorded in the income statement for the years ended
analysis of goodwill is performed with any identified impairment December 31, 2014 and 2013 and no amounts accrued for penalties

char3ged to expense. No impairment was identified in either 2014 or as of December 31,2014 and 2013.

$24,000 is included m intangible assetson the Statement of Financial 10. DEPOSITS
Condition.The remaining core deposit intangible will beamortized over 4
more years. Contractual maturities of time deposits at December 31, 2014 and

2013 were asfollows (in thousands):

9. INCOMETAXES 2014 2013

The com onents of income tax expense/(benefit) on operations are as Under three months $ 66,574 52,873
follows ( thousands): Current Deferred Total Three to twelve months 33,198 40,132
YearendedDecember31,2014 Over one year to three years 32,521 29,581

Federal $ 1,693 (80) 1,613 Over three years 5,410 2,318

State 328 59 387 Total time deposits $ 137,703 124,904

Total $ 2,021 (21} 2,000

Included in time deposits were $38,945,000in brokered deposits at -
Current Deferred Total December 31,2014 compared to $37,044,000at December 31,2013.

YearendedDecember31,2013 Time deposits that meet or exceedthe FDICinsurancelimit of $250,000
Federal $ 1,399 96 1,495 at year end 2014 and 2013 were $48,339,000 and $35,990,000,
State 323 22 345 respectively.

Total $ 1,722 118 1,840
11. BENEFITPLANS

The actual and statutory tax rates on operations for the years ended PensionPlan
December 31,2014 and 2013 differ asfollows:

The Company hasa funded noncontributory defined benefit pension
2014 2013 plan that covers the majority of its employees. The plan provides

defined benefits based on years of service and fmal average salary.
Statutoryrate 34.0 % 34.0% The Company uses December 31 as the measurement date for its
Increase(decrease)resulting from: pension plan. New employees hired on or after March 1, 2009 are
Tax-exempt income (8.9) (9.7) excluded from participation in the plan. The plan was frozen and
Statetaxes,net offederal income tax benefit 3.7 3.5 curtailed to new benefit accruals asof December 31, 2012.
Other 0.3 0.2

Actual rate 29.1 % 28.0 %
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The System's overall investment strategy is to achieve a mix of

11. BENEFITPLANS(continued) approximately 97% of investments for long-term growth and 3% for
near-term benefit payments with a wide diversification of asset types,

Thefollowing table setsforth the defined benefit pension plan'schange fund strategies, and fund managers.The target allocations for System
in benefit obligation and change in plan assets for the years ended assetsare shown in the table below. Cashequivalents consist primarily
December 31,2014 and 2013 (in thousands): of government issues(maturing in less than three months) and short

term investment funds. Equity securities primarily include investments
2014 2013 in common stock, depository receipts, preferred stock and real estate

Ch ctedbenefitabli, investment trusts. Fixed mcome secunties include corporate bonds,
angeinproje gation government issues,mortgage backed securities, muniapals and other

Benefitobligationatbeginningofyear $ 10,067 11,697 assetbacked securities.
Servicecost 91 89

The weighted average expected long-term rate of return is estimated
Interestcost 498 447 basedoncurrenttrendsintheSystem'sassetsaswellasprojectedfuture
Actuarial(gain)/loss 2,261 (1,061) rates of return on those assets and reasonable actuanal assumptions
Benefitspaidandexpectedplanexpenses (509) (505) based on the guidance provided by ASOP No. 27 "Selection of

Economic Assumptions for Measunng Pension Obligations" for long
Benefitobligationatendofyear 12,408 10,067 term inflation, and the real and nominal rate of investment return for

Changeinplanassets aspecific mix of assetclasses.Thefollowing assumptions were used in
Fairvalueofplanassetsatbeginningofyear 10,853 9,380 determining the long-term rate of return:

Actualretumonplanassets 902 1,485 E,quity securities- Dividend discount model, the smoothed earnings
Benefitspaidandplanexpenses (526) (512) yield model and the equity risk premium model.
Contributions - 500

Fairvalueofplanassetsatendolyear 11,229 10,853 Fixed income securities- Current yield-to-maturity and forecasts of
future yields.

Fundedstatusatendolyear(planassetslessbanelltebligation) $ (1,179) 786 Other financial instruments- Comparison of the specific investment's
riskto that of fixed income and equity instruments and using judgment.

Amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income/ The long term rate of return considers historical returns. Adjustments
(loss) at December 31,2014 and 2013 consists of (in thousands): were made to historical returns in order to reflect expectations of

future returns. These adjustments were due to factor forecasts by
2014 2013 economists and longterm U.S.Treasury yields to forecast long-term

Unrecognized net actuarial (loss),net of tax $ (2,051) (800) inflation. In addition forecasts by economists and others for longterm
GDPgrowth were factored into the development of assumptions for

The amount of net actuarial loss that will be amortized in 2015 is earnings growth and per capita income.

D2elc6eeb0erT3hea2 4 and 20b1e3 as $ 24 8 0 hnedy$ela e7nd ect ve FeembruaurL2n0t1,tphreos esmrevikedittsinevnetstmmeanntaÛel nes.
respectively. Pensioncostsconsist of the following components for the purchasing any security greater than 5% of the portfolio at the time
yearsended December 31,2014 and 2013 (in thousands): of purchase or greater tnan 8% at market value in any one issuer.

Effective June 25, 2013 the issuer of any securi urchased must be
located in a country inthe MSCI(Morgan Stanle ital International)

2014 2013 World Index.In addition, the following are pro d:
Servicecost $ 91 89
lnterestonprojectedbenefitobligation 498 447 Equi y securities- Short sales, unregistered securities and margin
Expectedretumonplanassets (686) (592) purc ases.
Amortizationofnetloss 21 225 Fixed income- Mortgage backed derivatives that have an inverse
Netperiodicpensionexpenselbenefit) $ (76) 169 floating rate coupon or that are interest only securities. Any asset

backed security that is not issued by the U.S.Government or its
agencies or its instrumentalities. Generally securities of lessthan Baa2/

2014 2013 BBBquality may not be purchased. Securities of lessthan A-quality
may not m the aaaregate exceed 13% of the investment manager's

Netloss( 2,062 (1947) portfolio. Prior toTebruary 2012, these investments could not exceed
gain) , 10%of the manager'sportfolio. Effective February 2012,an investment

Amortizationofnetgainl(loss) (21) (225) manager's portfolio of commercial mortgage-backed securities and
Totalrecognizedinother asset backed securities shall not exceed 10% of the portfolio at the

comprehensiveincome(gain) 2,041 (2,172) time of purchase.

Other financial instruments- Unhedged currency exposure in
Totalrecognizedinnetperiodicpension countries not defined as "high income economies" by the World Bank.

costl(income)andothercomprehensiveincome 1,965 (2,003) All other investments not rohibited by the S stem are permitted. At .
December 31, 2014 and $013 the System heyldcertain investments

Weighted-averageofassumptionsusedtodeterminenetperiodiccostareasfollows: which are no longer deemed acceptable to acquire. These positions
will be liquidated when the investment managers deem that such
liquidation is in the best interest of the System.The target allocation

2014 2013 range below is both historic and prospective in that it hasnot changed
Discountrate 5.10% 4.13% since prior to 2012.It is the assetallocation range that the investment
Exectedlon-termrateofretum 6.50% 6.50% managers have been advised to adhere to and within which they mayP 9 make tactical asset allocation decisions.
RateofCompensationIncrease 0.00% 0.00%

Weighted-

Weighted-averageofassumptionsusedtodeterminepensionbenefitobligationsatyearendareasfollows: Average
Percentageof PlanAssetsat Expected

2014 2013 Target December31, Long-Term

Discountrate 4.04% 5.10% AssetCategory Allocation 2015 2014 2013 RateofReturn

RateofCompensationIncrease 0.00% 0.00% Cashequivalents 0-20% 8.7% 5.5% 0.26%
Equitysecurities 40-60% 48.2% 50.6% 4.05%
Debtsecurities 40-60% 43.1% 43.9% 1.98%
Otherfinancialinstruments 0-5%

Page 60 of77
F-17



Notes ToConsolidatedFinanciaiStatements

11. BENEFITPLANS(continued)

FairValue of Plan Assets

Fairpv ue isttra sÎera i9abitÜet at uldhbe reecee r an amstt The following table represents the Plan'sassets at fair value by class,as
advantageous market for the assetorSiability in an orderly transaction of December 31,2014 and 2013 (in thousands):
between market participants on the measurement date. There are
three levelsof inputs that may be used to measure fair values: 2014
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsor liabilities in level1 Level2 Level3 Total
active markets that the entity has the ability to access as of the
measurement date. CashEquivalents:

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices Foreigncurrencies $ . 5 - - 5
such as quoted prices for similar assetsor liabilities, quoted prices in GovemmentIssues - 37 - 37
markets that are not active,or other inputs that are observable or can 5hortterminvestmentfunds(a) - 940 - 940

be corroborated by observable market data. TotalCashEquivalents 5 977 - 982
Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a reporting entity's Equities:
own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants
would use in pricing an assetor liability. Common5tock 2,189 - - 2,189

DepositoryReceipts 27 - - 27
In instances in which the inputs used to measure fair value fall into .
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the fair value measurement CommmgledPensionTrustFunds - 1,605 - 1,605
has been.determined based on the lowest level input that is significant ExchangeTradedFunds 1,570 - - 1,570
to the fairnalue measurement in its entirety. Investments valued using Preferred5tock 21 - - 21
the NAV (Net Asset Value) are classified as level 2 if the System can
redeem its investment with the investee at the NAV at the measurement TotalEquities 3,807 1,605 - 5,412
date.If the System can never redeem the investment with the investee FixedincomeSecurities:
at the NAV, it is considered a level 3.If the System can redeem the
investment at the NAVat a future date, the System'sassessment of the Autoloanreceivable - 49 - 49
significance of a particular item to the fair value measurement in its Collateralizedmortgageobligations - 101 - 101
entirety requires judgment, including the consideration of inputs CommingledPensionTrustFunds - 3,132 - 3,132
specific to the asset.

CorporateBonds - 441 - 441
The Systemusesthe Thomson ReutersPricin Serviceto determine the FederalHomeLoanMortgageCorp - 11 - 11
fair value of equities excluding commingle pension trust funds, the
pricing service of IDCCorporate USAto determine the fair value of fixed FederalNationalMortgageAssoc - 290 - 290
mcome securities excluding commingled pension trust funds and JP GeneralNationalMortgageAssoc.Il- 18 - 18
Morgan ChaseBank, N.A.to determine the fair value of commingled
pension trust funds. In accordancewith ASC820, the following tables Govemmentissues - 764 - 764
(rounded to the nearest thousands) represent the Plan's fair value OtherAssetBackedSecurities - 24 - 24
hierarchy for its fmancial assets(investments) measured at fair value on Other5ecurities - 5 - 5
a recumng basis.

TotalFixedincomeSecurities - 4,835 - 4,835
TotalInvestments $ 3,812 7,417 - 11,229

(a)FairvalueatNAV

2013
Level1 Level2 Level3 Total

CashEquivalents:
Foreigncurrencies $ 15 - - 15
Govemmentissues - 157 - 157

Shortterminvestmentfunds(a) - 420 - 420

TotalCashEquivalents 15 577 - 592
Equities:

Common5tock 5,388 - - 5,388

DepositoryReceipts 52 16 - 68
PreferredStock 25 - - 25
RealEstateInvestmentTrust 16 - - 16

TotalEquities 5,481 16 - 5,497 *
FixedincomeSecurities:

Autoloanreceivable - 39 - 39

Collateralizedmortgageobligations - 1,190 - 1,190
CorporateBonds - 1,279 - 1,279
FederalHomeLoanMortgageCorp - 148 - 148
FederalNationalMortgageAssoc - 511 - 511
GeneralNationalMortgageAssoc.l - 36 - 36
GeneralNationalMortgageAssoc.ll - 16 - 16
Govemmentissues - 1,509 - 1,509
Municipals - 36 - 36

TotalFixedlncomeSecurities - 4,764 - 4,764
Totalinvestments $ 5,496 5,357 - 10,853

(a)FairvalueatNAV
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11. BENEFITPLANS(continued) 2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan

t Decembter lund r rteecpcn ro e y e A e e e an 800 fo 2 nd $ 30R0f r 01 e4oI nco e a
2013 the portfolio was managed by two investment firms. Control was enefit was $3,000for 2014 and $5,000for 2013.
split approximately 58% and 41%, with the remaining 1% under the

direct control of the System. The Co y's 2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan ("Plan"),which
is share o nera proved, permits the grant of share options and share

At December 31,2014, two of the commingled trust funds and a short grants to itsem eesfor up to 80,000sharesof common stock.Option
term investment fund accounted for 13%,9%, and 8% respectively of awards are grante with an exercise price at least equal to the market
the entire investment portfolio. At both December31,2014, and 2013, price of the company's common stock at the date of grant;those option
there was a 5% portfolio concentration in the State Street Bank& Trust awards may havevesting periodsranging up to ten years.Co.Short Term Investment Fund.
PensionPlan Investment Policies A committee of the Board of Directors wil.I administer the Plan.Their

responsibilitywill include designating participants, determining the type
The System was established in 1938 to provide for the payment of andnumberofawardsgrantedandestablishingthetermsandconditions
benefits to employees of participating banks.The System is overseen of the awards.
by a Board of Trustees who meet quarterly and set the investment

u eyntcul r onettienBeoaCrof TEruesctueo thce y te a ma n r clalueedfo cho ÎÛnonvaa d isÁt aStehdn thmeoddajeoat nt
its Investment Committee• the assumptions noted in the table below. Expected volatilities are
The System's investment objective is to exceed the investment based on historical volatilities of the Company's common stock. The
benchmarks in each asset category. Each firm operates under a company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and post-

separatewritten investment policy approved by the Trustees. aSs i otr noi IndbaÎaan e eeseens t edpteeromdof t e at onpttÎodr
Each Firm reports at least quarterly to the investment Committee and granted are expected to be outstanding, which takes into account
semi-annually to the Board. that the options are not transferable. The risk-free interest rate for the

expected term of the option is based on the U.S.Treasuryyield curve in
effect at the time of the grant.Contributions

The Company is not required to make a contribution in 2015. The fair value of options granted was determined using the following
weighted-average assumptions as of the grant date. There were no

Estimated Future Benefit Payments of Pension Plan options granted in 2014.
The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, E
asappropriate, are expected to be paid (in thousands): Risk-freeinterestrate 0.50%

Expectedterm(years) 4

Pension Expectedstockpricevolatility 15.50%

Year Benefits DividendYield 333%

2015 $ 433 Asummaryoftheactivityinthestockoptionplanfor2014follows(inthousandsexceptsharedata):

2016 471 WeightedAverage WeightedAverageAggregate
2017 548 Exercise Remaining Intrinsic
2018 604 Shares Price ContractualTermValue
2019 629

2020-2024 3,418 0utstandingatbeginningofyear 23,000 $ 27.90 33Years $ 48
Granted

Deferred Compensation Plan Exercised (900) $ 26.00 - $ 4

The company hasa Deferred Compensation Plan (DCP)which permits Forfeitedorexpired _
activedirectors and certain executive officers the option to defer receipt 0utstandingatendofyear 22,100 $ 27.98 24Years $ 117
of aportion of their future salary,bonus, or directors'fees. The amqunts

deferred will earn income at the Prime interest rate reported in the Wall Fullyvestedandexpectedtovest22,100 $ 27.98 24Years $ 117
Street Journaland are payableupon retirement. Deferred compensation
liability at December 31,2014 and 2013 was $2,904,000and $2,603,000, Exercisableatendofyear 13,570 $ 27.27 20Years $ 81

r$e273 ÈD1e4arnredd$œmp0e0nkatioonexpense related to this plan was lnformationrelatedtothestockoptionplanduringtheyearfollows(inthousandsexceptsharevalue)

In conjunction with the DCP,the Company entered into split-dollar M E
agreements on certain participants, whereby upon death, the
participant's beneficiary will receive the deferred account balance or a intrinsicvalveofoptionsexercised $ 4 4
death benefit, whichever is greater. Thesesplit dollar agreements were Cashreceivedfromoptionsexercised$ 23 38
financed through the purchase of life insurance policies. The cash
surrender value of these policies was $9,042,000 and $8,791,000 at Taxbenefitrealizedfromoptionsexercised$ 1 2
December 31,2014 and 2013, respectively. Weightedaveragefairvalueofoptionsgranted$ - 1.80

401(k) Plan As of December 31, 2014 there was $4,000 of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to nonvested stock options granted under

The Company sponsors a defined contribution profit sharing, 401(k) the Plan. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted
plan covering substantially all employees. The Company matched average period of 1 year.
certain levels of each employee's contributions to the plan resulting in
an expenseof $491,000 and $456,000in 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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NotesToConsolidatedFinancialStatements

12. RELATEDPARTYTRANSACTIONS 14. SHAREHOLDERS'EQUITY

Executive officers and directors and their associateswere customers of The Company is dependent on receipt of dividends from the Bank in
and had other transactions with the Company in the ordinary courseof order to pay dividends to its shareholders. Payment of dividends by the
business. A summary of the changes in outstanding loans to executive Bankis limited or restricted in certain circumstances.According to state
officers and directors, or indirectly made for their benefit, for the years banking law,approval of the New York State Department of Financial
ended December 31,2014 and 2013 is asfollows (in thousands): Services is required for the declaration of dividends by a bank in any

2014 2013 year in which the dividends declared will exceed its net profits for that
year combined with its retained net profits of the preceding two years.
Dividends in the amount of $7,234,000are available from the Bankat

Balanceofloansoutstandingatbeginningofyear $ 296 359 December 31, 2014 without the approval of the New York State
New loans and increases in existing loans - 20 Department of Financial Services.
Loan principal payments (34) (83)

15. SUBORDINATEDDEBENTURES

Balanceatendofyear $ 262 296 On July 16, 2007, Steuben Statutory Trust il, a trust formed by the
Company, completed a pooled private offering of $2,000,000of trust

2, ,t000harnd Ou4000 tcD e ecrt312E4datnhd0133r escti elrY dprebeerrteudss turittiees.The Compahnayneuedr$o2,0n6e2,0h00of s ordinated

u ts Shunct e1e5 ,e0000dannarkc5o0u00sof bluŠanes2toh1a3twere aid o tShecurkyofTthheettrruusStandnthecporoceeddaSaofth r erred securities soandz
Shults & Shultsis a partnership owned by David A.Shults,Chairman anyci statements, but rather the subordinated debentures are shown as a
Director and EricShults,Director both ot whom are also shareholdersof liability. The Company's investment in the common stock of the trust
the Company. was $62,000 and included in other assets.The Company may redeem

the subordinated debentures in whole or in part, in a principal amount
13. REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS with integral multiples of $1,on or after September 15,2012 at 100%of
The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements the principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid interest. The
administered by the federal banking agencies.Failureto meet minimum subordinated debentures are also redeemable in whole or in part from
capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and possibly time to time, upon occurrence of specific events defined within the
additional discretionary -- actions by regulators that, if undertaken, trust indenture.The Company has the option to defer interest payments
could have a direct material effect on the Company's financial on the subordinated debentures from time to time for aperiod not to
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory exceed five consecutive years.
framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific
capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank's
assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated The subordinated debentures may be included in Tier I capital (with
under regulatory accounting practices.The Bank'scapital amounts and certain limitations applicable) under current regulatory guidelines and
classification are alsosubject to qualitative judgments by the regulators interpretations. The subordinated debentures have a variable rate of
about components, risk weightings, and other factors. interest equal to the three month London Interbank Offered Rate

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure ca ital (LIBOR) plus 1.55%.This rate resets on a quarterly basis and was
adecuacy require the Bankto maintain minimum amounts and raptios 1.7906%at December 31, 2014.
(set forth in the table below) of total and Tier Icapital (as defined in the
regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and Tier I capital (as 16. ADVANCESFROMFEDERALHOMELOAN BANK
delined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of
December 31, 2014, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy Advancesfrom the FederalHome Loan Bankof NewYorkat December
requirements to which it is subject. 31,2014 and 2013 were asfollows (in thousands):

The most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation and the New York State Department of Financial Services 2014 2013
categorized the Bank as "well capitalized" under the regulatory
framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as "well MaturitiesFebruary2015throughMay2019,fixedrate $ 38,500 38,000
capitalized" the Bank must maintain minimum total nsk-based, Tier I atratesfromo.39%to3.80%,averagingo.89%for
risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in the table. Thereare December31,2014and0.95%forDecember31,2013
no conditions or events since that notification that management
believes havechanged the Bank'scategory. Eachadvanceis payable at its maturity date, with a prepayment penalty

. for fixed rate advances.Theadvanceswere collateralized by $44,997,000
The Barik's reegulatorycapital amounts and ratios are presented in and $44,943,000 of residential mortgage and commercial real estate
following tabl (in thousands): loans under a blanket lien arrangement at December 31, 2014 and

Minimum ToBe"Well 2013, respectively. Maturities on these advances as of December 31,
Actual Regulatory Capitalized"Under 2014 are asfollows (in thousands):

Regulatory Capital RegulatoryCapital Year Amount
Capital: Requirement: Requirement:

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

AsofDecember31,2014 2015 $ 22,500
TotalGpital $ 49,736 17.77%$ 22,390 8.00%$ 27,988 10.00% 2016 11,500
(toRiskWeightedAssets) 2017 1,500

Tier10pital 46,6% 16.66 11,195 4.00 16,793 6.00 2018 1,500(toRiskWeightedAssets)
Tier10pital 46,6% 10.05 18,557 4.00 23,197 5.00 2019 1,500
(toAverageAssets)

Total $ 38,500
AsofDecember31,2013

TotalOpital $ 44,992 17.88% $ 20,125 8.00% $ 25,157 10.00%
(toRiskWeightedAssets)

Tier10pital 42,132 16.75 10,063 4.00 15,094 6.00
(toRiskWeightedAssets)

Tier10pital 42,132 9.76 17,273 4.00 21,591 5.00
(toAverageAssets)

The Company'sratios are comparable to the Bank'sstated above.The
Company'sactual TierI capitalratio (to AverageAssets)at December31,2014
was10.19%comparedto 10.23%forDecember31,2013.
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17. COMMITMENTSANDCONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, there are various outstanding The following is significant amounts reclassified out of each
commitments and contingent liabilities, such as guarantees, and component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) for
commitments to extend credit, which are not reflected in the the years ending December 31,2014 and 2013 (in thousands):
accompanying financial statements. Off-balance sheet risk to credit
loss exists up to the face amount of these instruments, although the DetailSabout AmOunt AffeCtedlineitem
Company does not anticipate material losses as a result of these .
transactions. Mortgage and other loan commitments outstanding at Accumulated0ther ReclasSilledfrom mtheStatement
December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to $48,113,000 and CompfehenSive ACCumulated0ther whereNet
$38,713,000 respectively. Fixedinterest rates on mortgage and other
loan commitments outstanding can change prior to closing only if 2014 incomeComponentsComprehensivelnComeInC0melspresented
interest rates decrease. Variable rate loans float prior to closing.
Outstanding commitments on letters of credit at December 31, 2014 Unrealizedinsand|055eS00
and 2013 amounted to $1,460,000and $1,127,000respectively. 90

availablefOrsaleseCurities $ 197 Gain0nsaleofinvestments
in the normal conduct of business,the Company is involved in various
litigation matters. Oneof these matters involves a related party of the andotherassets
Company as a co-defendant with the bank with respect to a trust 197 T0talbeforetax
administration matter. In the opinion of management, the ultimate
disposition of these matters should not have a materially adverse (77) Taxbenefit(expense)
effect nor is material to the financial position of the Company. The

Company had an accrued liability of $60,000 related to this matter at $ 120 Netoftax
both December 31, 2014 and 2013.

18.ACCUMULATEDOTHERCOMPREHENSIVEINCOME(LOSS) Amortizationofdefinedbenefit
The following is changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive pensi0nitems
Income (Loss) by component, net of tax, for the years ending PriorserviCeCosts $ -

December 31, 2014 and 2013 (in thousands): Transition0bligation

""'I edd ACtuarialgainSI(lOsses) (21) PensionPlanExpense
Losseson Defined (21) TOtabef0retaX
Available. Benefit

for-sale Pension

2014 securities Items Total

Beginningbalance $ 669 (800) (131) $ (13) Netoftax

othercomprehensiveincome/(loss) I0talreClaSSifiCationf0ft leperiOd $ 107 Netofex
beforereclassification 1,894 (1,264) 630

Amountsreclassifiedfrom accumulated

othercomprehensiveincome/(loss) (120) 13 (107)
Detailsabout Amount AffeCtedlineitem

et cuerrentSperiodother comprehensive 1,774 (1,251) 523

Comprehensive ACCumulated0ther whereNet

Endingbalance $ 2,443 (2,051) 392 2013 InC0meCOMOnentS COmprelenSVelnCOme |HCOmeISpreSented

Unrealized UnrealiZedgainSand1055e50nGains and
Losseson Defined SVaNadef0fSaleSeCurities $ - Gain0nSale00nVeSiment5

Available- Benefit andOtheraSSetS
for-sale Pension

2013 Securities Items Total - T0talbef0retaX

Beginningbalance $ 4,691 (2,132) 2,559

othercomprehensiveincomel(loss) $ - Neaftax
beforereclassification (4,022) 1,194 (2,828)

Amounts reclassifiedfromaccumulated Ám0ftilatI0nOfdefinedbenefit
other comprehensiveincomel(loss) - 138 138 ,

pensl0nitems
Netcurrentperiodother comprehensive Rii0fSerVCeCOStS $ -
income/(loss) (4,022) 1,332 (2,690)

Ending balance $ 669 (800) (131) Actugy|a|ansj(|05ses) (225) PensionPlanEXpense
(225) Totalbeforetax
87 Taxbenefit

$ (138) Netoftax

T0talreclaSSifiCationf0rtheperiod$ (138) Netoftax
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STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION
SHARE OWNER DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The purpose ofthe STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION (the "Corporation") SHARE OWNER DIVIDEND
REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN (the "Plan") is to provide the holders of record of the

Corporation's Common Stock (the "Common Stock")with a simple and convenient method of investing cashdividends paid
on the Corporation's Common Stock in the purchase of, as well as enabling them to make additional cashpayments to
purchase, additional sharesof Common Stock. The terms and conditions of the Plan are as follows.

1. ELIGIBILITY TO PARTICIPATE IN PLAN. All holders of record of Common Stock are eligible to

participate in the Plan. Beneficial owners of Common Stock whose shares areheld for them in registered names other than
their own, such asin the names of brokers,banknominees or trustees, should,if they wish to participate in the Plan,either
arrange for the holder of record to join the Plan or have the sharesthey wish to enroll for participation in the Plan transferred
to their own names.

2. ELECTION TO PARTICIPATE IN PLAN. Any holder of record of Common Stock may elect to

participate in the Plan (a "Participant") by returning to American Stock Transfer and Trust Company, LLC, the
Corporation's Transfer Agent and the Administrator ofthe Plan (the "Agent"), a properly completed Authorization Form as
attached hereto. The completed Authorization Form appoints the Agent asthe Participant's agent in the capacity of Plan
Administrator for the Participant and authorizes:

(a) the Corporation to pay to the Agent, for credit to the Participant's account under the Plan (a "Plan
Account"), all cash dividends payable on the Common Stock ("Dividends") that the Participant hasenrolled in the
Plan;

(b) the Agent, as agent,to credit to the Participant's Plan Account any Dividends paid, as well as any
sharesof Common Stock distributed asanon-cash dividend or otherwise, on the sharesof Common Stock credited

to the Participant's Plan Account;

(c) the Agent, as agent, to apply all such Dividends received to the purchase of additional shares of
Common Stock; and

(d) the Agent, as agent, to apply all voluntary Additional Cash Payments madeby the Participant under the
Plan (as further described below) to the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock,

all in accordance with the further terms and conditions of the Plan.

Participants may elect to reinvest Dividends paid on all or only a portion of the Common Stock registered in their
names and/or held in their PlanAccounts by designating such election on the Authorization Form. The Internal Revenue
Service ("IRS") currently requires Participants to reinvest Dividends on a minimum of ten percent (10%) of the Common
Stock registered in their name(s) and/or held in their Plan Accounts. Participants electing partial reinvestment of Dividends
must designate the number of whole shares for which they want to receive cash payment of Dividends,which must equal
ninety percent (90%) or less of the number of whole shares registered in their names and/or held in their Plan Accounts.
Dividends paid on all other shares registered in the Participant's name and all other sharesheld in the Participant's Plan
Account will be reinvested in additional shares of Common Stock.

Participants may at any time deposit any Common Stock certificates in their possessionwith the Agent to be credited
to the Participant's PlanAccount. Such shareswill betransferred into the name of the Agent or its nominee, asagent for the
Participantunder the Plan,andthereafter treated in the same manner asshares purchased through the Plan.

Reinvestment levels may be changed from time to time asa Participant desires by submitting a new Authorization
Form to the Agent. To be effective with respect to aparticular Dividend, anysuchchange must be received by the Agent at
least five business days before the record date for that Dividend.

3. PLAN ACCOUNT. After receipt ofa properly completed Authorization Form, the Agent will open aPlan
Account for the Participant as Plan Administrator and agent for the Participant and will credit to such Plan Account:
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(a) all Dividends received by the Agent from the Corporation onsharesof Common Stock registered in the
Participant'sname and enrolled in the Plan by the Participant, commencing with the first Dividend paid following
receipt of the Authorization Form by the Agent (which must be received at least five business daysprior to the
record date of a Dividend to be effective with respect to that Dividend);

(b) all Dividends received by the Agent on any full or fractional shares credited to the Participant'sPlan
Account;

(c) all Additional Cash Payments (asfurther described below)received by the Agent from the Participant to
purchase additional shares of Common Stock;

(d) all full or fractional shares purchased for the Participant's Plan Account after making appropriate
deductions for the purchase prices paid for such shares; and

(e) any shares of Common Stock distributed by the Corporation as a dividend or otherwise on shares
credited to the Participant's Plan Account.

4. ADDITIONAL CASH PAYMENTS. Any Participant may from time to time elect to purchaseadditional
shares of Common Stock through the Plan by using a Plan Authorization Form to make voluntary additional cashpayments
to the Agent of not lessthan $100.00 nor more than $5,000.00 per quarter ("Additional CashPayments"), which will be used

to purchase additional shareson a quarterly basis as further described below. For purposes of the Plan,a new quarterwill
begin on the day following adividend payment date. All sharespurchased with Additional CashPayments will be credited
to the Participant's Plan Account (unless the Agent is instructed otherwise by the Participant on the Authorization Form).

5. PURCHASES OF SHARES. Dividends credited to a Participant's Plan Account will be invested in the
purchase of additional sharesof Common Stock on or about the payment date for that Dividend. Additional CashPayments
made by a Participant will be invested in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock on or about the payment date
for the next succeeding Dividend following receipt of such payment. Since no interest will be paid on Additional Cash
Payments held by the Agent pending the investment of such funds, it is suggested that any such payments a Participant may
wish to make be sent soasto reach the Agent no later than five business days prior to the record date for the next succeeding
Dividend. Any Additional Cash Payments received during a quarter will be returned by mail to the Participant, at the
addressshown on the Agent's records, if written notification requesting suchreturn isreceived by the Agent on orbefore the
last business day prior to the next Dividend record date.

All sharespurchased hereunder may be purchased on any securities exchangewhere the Common Stock is traded, in
the over-the-counter market, in privately negotiated transactions, or from Participants who have directed the Agent to sell
their Common Stock,and may be on such terms asto price, delivery, and otherwise, and may be executed through such
brokers, and otherwise, as the Agent shall determine in its sole discretion. Additionally, whenever and to the extent so
directed by the Corporation from time to time in its sole discretion, the Agent shall purchase such sharesdirectly from the
Corporation in accordance with the further terms of this Plan. In making purchases hereunder, the Agent may commingle
the funds of each Participant with those of the other Participants.

For purchases made directly from the Corporation,the price of the CommonStockso purchasedwill bethe fair market value
per share of the Corporation'sCommon Stock at the time of such purchase, asdetermined by a committee appointed by the "

Corporation's Board of Directors (the "Committee"). This Committee will determine what it, in its best judgment,believes
to be the fair market value of a share of the Corporation's Common Stock from time to time. The Committee may determine
such fair market value from any reasonable criteria it elects to use,such as recent salesof shares of Common Stock in the
marketplace, the fair market value and,recent salesof sharesof comparable institutions, an independent firm that values the
CommonStock,other measures such asreturn on equity, return onassetsandbookvalue,and any other reasonable criteria
the Committee determines. For purchases made in the open market or otherwise than directly from the Corporation, the
price at which the Agent shall be deemed to have acquired Common Stock for the Participant's Plan Account shall be the
average price of the Common Stock purchased by the Agent with the proceeds of a Dividend or with the Additional Cash
Payments being applied to such purchase, asthe casemay be. Upon each purchase of shareshereunder, the Plan Account of
each Participant will be reduced by the balance to be invested from that Plan Account andcredited with anumber of shares,
including fractional shares, equal to the balance to be invested from that Plan Account divided by the purchase price
applicable to such transaction determined as described above.
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6. ACCOUNT STATEMENTS. As soon as practicable following the endof each quarter in which there isa
transaction in a Participant's Plan Account, the Participant will receive adetailed statement (the "Statement") showing, as
applicable:

(a) any Dividend paid on the Participant's Common Stock participating in the Plan;

(b) any Additional Cash Payments received from the Participant during that quarter;

(c) the purchase prices and numbers of sharespurchased during that quarter for the Participant's Plan Account with
the funds held in such Account;

(d) the number of shares withdrawn from the Participant'sPlan Account; and

(e) as of the date of the Statement, the total number of sharesof Common Stock owned by the Participant that are
participating in the Plan.

The last Statement of the year will show the aggregate amount of brokerage fees,if any,paid by the Corporation in respect of
shares purchased for the Participant's Plan Account.

7. ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATES. Sharespurchased under the Plan will be registered in the name ofthe
Agent or its nominee, as agent for the Participant under the Plan. No certificates will be issued to a Participant for the
CommonStockin the Participant'sPlan Account unlessrequested in writing or the PlanAccount is terminated ashereinafter
provided. Certificates for any number of whole shares of Common Stock credited to a Participant's Plan Account will be
issued to a Participant upon written request sent to the Agent at the address indicated below. A Participant may either
furnish separatewritten instructions to the Agent each time the Participant desires that certificates be issued or furnish the
Agent with blanket instructions covering all whole sharesof CommonStock credited to the Participant's Plan Account from
time to time under the Plan. No certificates for fractional shares will be issued notwithstanding any request therefor, but
dividends on a fractional interest in shareswill be credited to a Participant's Plan Account.

8. FEES. The Corporation has agreed to pay all brokerage commissions and Agent service charges in
connection with the administration and operation of the Plan. The Agent may charge a Participant for additional services
performed by the Agent at the request of the Participant and not provided for herein.

9. TAXES. It is understood that the automatic investment of dividends under this Plan does not relieve the

Participant of any income taxes which may be payable on such dividends. The Agent will comply with all applicable IRS
requirements concerning the withholding of taxes on dividend payments and filing of information returns for dividends
credited to each Participant's Plan Account. Any amounts required to be withheld will be deducted from each Dividend
prior to investment. Each Participant will be provided annually with the information provided by the Agent to the IRS that
year either through receipt of a duplicate of the informational return filed by the Agent with the IRS or in a year-end

Statement each calendar year. With respect to foreign Participants whose Dividends are subject to United States income tax
withholding, the Agent will comply with all applicable IRSrequirements concerning the amount of tax to be withheld,which
will be deducted from each Dividend prior to investment. The Agent will also report to each Participant the Participant's
pro-rata share of the Agent'sadministrative fees paid by the Corporation on behalf of all Participants.

10. VOTING OF PLAN SHARES. With respect to meetings of the Corporation's shareholders for which
proxies are solicited,aParticipant will receive a single proxy card covering all sharesregistered in the Participant's name as
well asall sharescredited to the Participant'sPlanAccount. If no sharesare registered in aParticipant's name,a proxy card
will be furnished to the Participant covering all shares credited to the Participant's Plan Account. In either situation, all
whole and fractional sharesheld in a Participant's Plan Account will be voted asdirected by the Participant. Ifa Participant
does not return a signed proxy card as instructed, suchshares will not be voted.

11. TERMINATION. Participation in the Planmay be terminated at any time by a Participant giving written
notice to such effect to the Agent. If the termination request is received less than five business days prior to a Dividend
record date,the request will not be processed until after that Dividend hasbeen invested and the sharespurchased credited to
the Participant's Plan Account. As promptly as possible following receipt of such notice, acertificate will be issued for all
whole sharesof Common Stock held in the Participant's Plan Account. The Corporation and the Agent reserve the right to
terminate the Participant's Plan Account immediately upon sending written notice to the Participant at the Participant's last
known address asshownon the Agent's Planrecords.In every caseof termination, the Participant's interest in any fractional
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sharesof Common Stock will be paid in cash based on the fair market value of the Corporation's Common Stock on the date
the Agent receives such termination notice. In every caseof termination, uninvested voluntary cashpayments credited to the
Participant's Plan Account will be returned to the Participant in cash without interest. The Agent shall terminate the
Participant's Plan Account upon receipt of written notice of the Participant's death or adjudication of incompetency,
provided, however, in the event of any such notice the Agent shall retain all payments received and/or shares of Common
Stock in the Participant's Plan Account until the Participant's legal representative shall have been appointed and furnished
proof satisfactory to the Agent of his/her right to receive such payments and/or shares of Common Stock.

12. CHANGES IN CAPITALIZATION. The Common Stock held by the Agent for Participants shall fully

participate in any stock dividend, stock split, split-up, spin-off, recapitalization, merger, consolidation, exchange of sharesor
other suchtransaction involving the Common Stock of the Corporation in accordance with the terms of suchtransaction. In
the event that the Corporation makes available to its shareholders rights to purchase additional shares, debentures or other
securities, each Participant shall have the right to exercise such rights arising from whole sharescredited to the Participant's
Plan Account in accordance with the terms and conditions of such rights. The Agent may, in its sole discretion, hold the
Common Stock of all Participants together in its name or in the name of its nominee.

13. LIABILITY. Neither the Agent nor the Corporation, nor any of their respective Directors, officers,
employees or agents shall be liable hereunder for any act or failure to act, including without limitation, for any claim of
liability (a) arising out of any failure to terminate aParticipant's PlanAccount uponsuchParticipant'sdeath or adjudication
of incompetency prior to receipt of written notice of suchdeath or incompetency; (b) with respect to the prices at which the
Common Stock is purchased or sold for a Participant'sPlanAccount or the timing of,or terms on which, such purchases or
sales are made; or (c) with respect to the value at any time of the Common Stock acquired for or credited to a Participant's
Plan Account. It is understood that government regulation may require the temporary curtailment or suspension of purchases
under the Plan. Neither the Agent nor the Corporation, nor any of their respective Directors, officers or employees shall
have any liability in connection with any inability to purchase Common Stock or the timing of any purchases.

14. SPENDTHRIFT PROVISION. A Participant may not sell, pledge,hypothecate or otherwise assign or
transfer any cashor Common Stock credited to the Participant's Plan Account, nor any other interest therein. No attempt to
effect any such sale,pledge,hypothecation, or other assignment or transfer shall be effective.

15. NOTICES. All notices, requests or other communications from Participants relating to the Planshall be
addressed as follows:

American Stock Transfer & Trust Company,LLC
Attention: Dividend Reinvestment Department

6201 15*Avenue

Brooklyn, NY 11219
1-800-937-5449

Each Participant agrees to notify the Agent promptly in writing of any change of address. Notices, requests or other
communications from the Agent to aParticipant relating to the Plan shall be addressedto the Participant at the Participant's
last known address asreflected in the Agent's records and shall be deemed given when received by the Participant or five
days after mailing, whichever first occurs.

16. AMENDMENT; TERMINATION. The Corporation and the Agent each reservethe right to suspend,to
modify (subject to anyrequisite authorization or approval by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction) and to terminate the
Plan or any Participant's participation in the Plan at any time by written notice given to all Participants or such Participant,
asthe casemay be. The Corporation andthe Agent each also reserve the right to adopt,and from time to time to change,
suchadministrative rules andregulations (not inconsistent in substance with the basicprovisions of the Planthen in effect)
as they deem desirable or appropriate for the administration of the Plan.

17. GOVERNING LAW. The Plan and all Plan Accounts established thereunder shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York and the rules and regulations of the Securities andExchange
Commission, as they may be changed or amended from time to time.

Adopted July 11, 2013.
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ANNEX 2

SHARE OWNER DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN
AUTHORIZATION FORM
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STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

Share Owner Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

Check only one of the following options:
O FULL DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT

I want to reinvest all cash dividends on shares now or subsequently registered in my name and account, as well as cash dividends on all
sharescredited to my account under the Plan. I understand that I may also make additional cash investments of not less than $100 per
payment up to a maxirnum amount of $5,000 per quarter. (Complete if applicable) I also wish to make an additional cash investments at this
time and have, therefore, enclosed a check or money order (payable to American Stock Transfer & Trust Company) in the amount of
$

O PXTITXEDIVIDENITÉEINVESTMENT
I want to reinvest cash dividends on some of the shares currently registered in my name and account, and continue to receive cash dividends
on the remaining shares. Therefore, please reinvest the cash dividends on shares. (Must be on a minimum of ten (10%)
percent of the common stock registered in participant's name(s) or held in pian accounts as currently required by the Internal Revenue
Service.) I understand that I may also make additional cash investments of not less than $100 per payment up to a maximum amount of
$5,000 per quarter. (Complete if applicable) I also wish to make an additional cash investment at this time and have, therefore, enclosed a
check or money order (payable to American Stock Transfer & Trust Company) in the amount of $

O ADDITIONAL CASH INVESTMENT ONLY
I wish to make additional cash investments of not less than $100 per payment up to a maximum amount of $5,000 per quarter. I have
enclosed a check or money order (payable to American Stock Transfer & Trust Company) in the amount of $

I understand that, regardless of which option I have selected above,dividends on all shares held in my Plan account will be reinvested.

(Please sign on other side of this card)
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Share Owner Dividend Reinvestment Return to:
and Stock Purchase Plan American Stock Transfer & Trust Company LLC

For Share Owners of Attention: Dividend Reinvestment Department
Steuben Trust Corporation 6201 15th Avenue

Brooklyn, NY 11219

Date

Signatures of all registered owners

This is Not a Proxy
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PART III

EXHIBITS

Exhibit Index

Exhibit Sequential Page
Number Description Location

2.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Steuben Trust
Corporation as amended. *

2.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Steuben
Trust Corporation *

3.1 Authorization Form for Company's SeeAnnex 2 to
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan Offering Circular

3.2 Form of Stock Certificate of Steuben Trust Corporation *
3.3 Indenture for Junior Subordinated Debenture

Dated July 16,2007, for Steuben Statutory Trust II
A subsidiary of Steuben Trust Corporation
(omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the
Commission upon request)

6.1 Change in Control Agreement between Steuben Trust
Company andBrenda L.Copeland dated March 12,2009 *

6.2 Steuben Trust Corporation 2010 Long-Term

Stock Incentive Plan effective April 15,2010 *
6.3 Amended andRestated Director Deferred Fee

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and
Robert U. Blades, Jr.dated March 13,2008 *

6.4 First Amendment to the Steuben Trust Company Split
Dollar Agreement between Steuben Trust Company
And Robert U.Blades,Jr. dated December 17,2009 *

6.5 Amended andRestated Director Deferred Fee

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and
Brenda L.Copeland dated March 13,2008 *

6.6 Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Steuben
Trust Company and Edward G.Coll, Jr.dated
September 1, 1998 *

6.7 Split Dollar Agreement between Steuben Trust
CompanyandEdward G.Coll, Jr.dated December 21,
1998 . *

6.8 Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Steuben
Trust Company andCharles M. Edmondson dated
December 30, 2008 *

6.9 Split Dollar Agreement between Steuben Trust Company
And Charles M.Edmondson dated November 16,2009 *
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6.10 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee Agreement
Between Steuben Trust Company and Stoner E.Horey
Dated March 13,2008 *

6.11 Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Steuben Trust
Company and Stoner E.Horey dated September 1, 1998 *

Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee Agreement
6.12 Between Steuben Trust Company and Charles D.

Oliver dated March 13,2008 *

6.13 . Split Dollar Agreement between Steuben Trust Company
And Charles D.Oliver dated December 21, 1998 *

6.14 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee Agreement
between Steuben Trust Company and Kenneth D.
Philbrick dated March 13,2008 *

6.15 First Amendment to the Split Dollar Agreement
Between Steuben Trust Company and Kenneth D.
Philbrick dated February 5,2010 *

6.16 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and
David A.Shults dated March 13,2008 *

6.17 First Amendment to the Split Dollar Agreement
Between Steuben Trust Company and David A.
Shults dated December 17,2009 *

6.18 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and
Eric Shults dated March 13,2008 *

6.19 First Amendment to the Split Dollar Agreement and
Split Dollar Policy Endorsement between Steuben Trust
Company And Eric Shults dated April 19,2001 *

6.20 Amended and Restated Executive Deferred Compensation
Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and
Brenda L. Copeland dated March 13,2008 *

6.21 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between
Steuben Trust Company and Hans R.Kunze dated
March 30,2008 *

6.22 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between
Steuben Trust CompanyandJames R.McCormick
Dated May 30, 2008 *

6.23 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between
Steuben Trust CompanyandL. Victor Myers dated
May 30, 2008 *

6.24 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between
Steuben Trust Company andKenneth D.Philbrick
Dated September 1,1998 *
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6.25 First Amendment to the Amended September Dollar
Agreement dated December 14,2001 between Steuben
Trust Company andKenneth D.Philbrick dated
February 5,2010 *

6.26 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between
Steuben Trust Company andTheresa B. Sedlock dated
June 1, 2008 *

6.27 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between
Steuben Trust Company and Natalie M. Willoughby
Dated May 29, 2008 *

6.28 Retainer Fee Agreement with the law firm of
Shults and Shults dated April 16,2013 *

10.1 Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP 76

10.2 Consent of Underberg & Kessler LLP *

11.1 Opinion of Underberg & Kessler LLP *

15.1 Power of Attorney *
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Exhibit 10.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the use in this Registration Statement No. 024-10363 of Steuben Trust Corporation on
Post Qualification Amendment No. 3 to Form 1-A, of our report dated February 12, 2015 on the
consolidated financial statements of Steuben Trust Corporation.

Crowe Horwath LLP

Cleveland, Ohio

March 20, 2015
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SIGNATURES

The Issuer. The Issuer has duly caused this Offering Statementto be signed on its behalf by the un-

dersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in Hornell, New York, on this 20th day of March, 2015.

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

James'P.Nicoloff, Executive ViceFresident
and Chief Financial Officer

This Offering Statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates
indicated:

Date: March 20, 2015 .Å, , ./ .É da
BEendaL. Copeland, Éresident and
Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 20, 2015 ///7 4.{x4fgr77.
James P.Nicoloff, Executive Vio&President,
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: March 20, 2015 *DavidA. Shults
David A. Shults, Director and
Chairman of the Board

Date: March 20, 2015 *Robert U.Blades
Robert U.Blades, Jr.,Director

Date: March 20, 2015 *Michael E. Davidson
Michael E.Davidson, Director

Date: March 20, 2015 *Charles M.Edmondson
Charles M. Edmondson, Director

Date: March 20, 2015 *Stoner E.Horey
Stoner E.Horey, Director

Date: March 20, 2015 *L.Victor Myers
L.Victor Myers, Director

Date: March 20, 2015 *Charles D.Oliver
Charles D.Oliver, Director

Date: March 20, 2015 *Amanda S.Parker
Amanda S.Parker, Director

Date: March 20, 2015 *Eric Shults
Eric Shults, Director

Date: March 20, 2015 *Sherry C.Walton
Sherry C.Walton, Director

*By
James P.Nicoloff, as Attorney ' t


